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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Azure Power India 

Private Limited (“Company’”) will be held on Thursday, the 30th day of September 2021, at 05:30 P.M. (IST) 

at the registered office address at 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi - 110017 to transact 

the following businesses:  

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS ITEMS

1. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE COMPANY FOR THE

PERIOD ENDED ON 31st MARCH 2021

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended
on 31st March 2021, together with the schedules and notes attached thereto, along with the Reports thereon
of the Director’s and the Auditor’s, as circulated to the Members and laid before the meeting be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. TO RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF M/S MSKA & ASSOCIATES, CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS AS STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”)
(including any statutory enactment or modification thereof, for the time being in force), the Company hereby
ratifies the appointment of M/s MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
105047W), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, who was appointed to hold the office from the conclusion
of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 25, 2019 till the conclusion of AGM of the Company
to be held for the financial year 2023-24, subject to the ratification of Shareholders at each such AGM, at such
a remuneration including out of pocket expenses and other expenses as may be mutually agreed by and between
the CFO and the Auditor.”

3. TO RE-APPOINT RETIRING DIRECTORS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as
Ordinary Resolution:

3.1 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Deepak Malhotra be and is hereby re-elected as Nominee Director on the
Company’s Board of Directors. 

3.2 “RESOLVED THAT Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen be and is hereby re-elected as Non-Executive Director on 
the Company’s Board of Directors. 
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B. SPECIAL BUSINESS ITEMS

4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-
22.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation
of the Board of Directors, the members hereby approve and ratify, the appointment and remuneration payable
to M/s Saurabh Mishra & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 002680) as the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 as fixed by the Board or CFO of the Company.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Azure Power India Private Limited

Kapil Sharma Place: New Delhi 
Company Secretary Date: 08.09.2021 

NOTES: 

1) A member (other than body corporates) who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint

a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/ her and the proxy need not to be a member of the company whereas

the body corporates are entitled to appoint their authorised representatives to attend the AGM and cast their

votes through show of hands. A proxy form duly filled and signed shall be delivered to Mr. Kapil Sharma by e-

mail at cs@azurepower.com or by mail at 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi, South

Delhi-110017, not later than 05:30 P.M. of 28th September, 2021.

2) Members are requested to affix their signature at the space provided on the attendance slip annexed to the proxy

form and handover the slip at the entrance to the place of the meeting.

3) All documents referred in the notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the company between

10 A.M. to 3 P.M. on any working day prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

4) The explanatory statement as required under section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special

business is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of the notice as Annexure-A.

5) Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the AGM is annexed at the end of this Notice.
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Annexure-A 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE 
TRANSACTED AT THE AGM, PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 

Item No.4 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Audit and Records) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications thereof, for the time being in force), the Board of Directors 
of the Company at their meeting held on 26th August, 2021, had appointed M/s Saurabh Mishra & Associates, 
Cost Accountants (Registration No. 002680) as the Cost Auditors to conduct an audit of the Cost Records of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22, as well as authorised CFO of the Company to fix the 
remuneration to be paid to the Cost Auditors.  

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors is required to be 
approved and ratified by the shareholders of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company, therefore, 
recommends that the Resolution No. 4 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution by the members.  

None of the Director of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the above 
said matter at item no. 4. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Azure Power India Private Limited 

Kapil Sharma Place: New Delhi 
Company Secretary Date: 08.09.2021 
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ROUTE MAP 



 

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U40106DL2008PTC174774 

Regd. Office: 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi-110017 
Ph: 011-49409800 Email: cs@azurepower.com Web: www.azurepower.com 

 

Form No. MGT-11 
 

Proxy form 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

CIN: U40106DL2008PTC174774 

Name of the Company: AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Registered office: 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi, South Delhi-110017 
 

 

 
I/ We being the member of Azure Power India Private Limited, holding equity shares, 
hereby appoint 

 
1. Name: 

Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: or failing him 

 
 

2. Name: 
Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: 

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14th Annual General 

Meeting of the members of the Company, to be held on September 30, 2021 on Thursday at 05:30 P.M. 

(IST) at the registered office of the Company at 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New 

Delhi - 110017, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Annual Report of the company for the period ended on 31st March 2021. 

Name of the Member(s): 

Registered address: 

E-mail Id: 

Folio No/ Client ID: 

DP ID: 



 

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U40106DL2008PTC174774 

Regd. Office: 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi-110017 
Ph: 011-49409800 Email: cs@azurepower.com Web: www.azurepower.com 

 

2. To ratify the appointment of M/s MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company. 

 
3. To re-appoint retiring Directors. 

 
4. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors for Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed this …..…day of……………………2021 

 
 
 

Signature of Shareholder 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and delivered by e-mail at 
cs@azurepower.com or at the registered office of the Company, not later than 05:30 P.M. of 28th 
September, 2021. 

 
Affix Revenue 
Stamp of INR 
1/- 



 

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U40106DL2008PTC174774 

Regd. Office: 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi-110017 
Ph: 011-49409800 Email: cs@azurepower.com Web: www.azurepower.com 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

(To be presented at the entrance) 
14th Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 05:30 P.M. (IST) at 

5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi - 110017 
 
 

 
Folio No./DP ID & Client ID:  

No. of shares held: 
 

Name & Address of the Member: Signature: 

 

Name of the Proxyholder: 

 

Signature: 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby record my presence at the 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. 
 
 
 
 

Signature of the attending Member/Proxy 

 
 
 

Note: 
Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting. 
Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Notice for reference at the Meeting. 
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Board Report 

To 
The Members, 
Azure Power India Private Limited 

Your directors have pleasure in submitting Annual Report of the Company on the business and operations 

along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 (the “year 

under review”). 

1. Financial summary or highlights/performance of the company:

The Company’s financial performance as on March 31, 2021, is summarized as follows: 

Particulars 

For the year 
ended on 

March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year 
ended on  

March 31, 2020 
(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year 
ended on 

March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year 
ended on 

March 31, 2020 
(INR in Lakhs) 

Standalone Consolidated 

REVENUE FROM 
OPERATIONS 

Sale of Power 26,319 20,446 147,845 127,073 

Construction Revenue 923 81,158 - 53 

Services Rendered 9,707 12,534 9 1,871 

Other operating revenue 

Viability gap funding income - 2 1,057 1,179 

Carbon credit emission income 420 - 1,029 - 

Government grants related to 
assets 

- - 81 66 

Total Revenue from Operations 37,369 114,140 150,021 130,242 

Other Income 2,043 907 2,604 1,456 

Finance Income/Interest Income 11,879 8,567 4,945 5,399 

Total Revenue 51,291 123,614 157,570 137,097 

EXPENSES 

Construction, sub-contracting and 
other site expenses 

758 74,057 612 39 

Employee benefits expense 17,744 10,365 19,153 9,564 

Depreciation and amortization 
expense 

10,798 10,769 57,305 50,906 

Impairment loss - - 7,565 - 

Finance cost 28,913 27,067 96,582 91,115 

Other expenses 24,977 10,889 18,408 24,168 

Total expenses 83,190 133,147 199,625 175,792 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (31,899) (9,533) (42,055) (38,695) 

Total Tax Expense/ (Tax Benefit) (7,969) (7,860) (6,178) (13,861) 

Profit/(Loss) after tax (23,930) (1,673) (35,877) (24,834) 

Total comprehensive income/ 
(expense/loss) 

(24,542) (2,221) (36,893) (25,398) 
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2. Financial Performance and State of company affairs:

Standalone Financial Details:

Total Revenue from operations for the financial year 2020-21 stood at INR 37,369 lakhs, decreased by 67.26%
over the last financial year (INR 114,140 lakhs in 2019-20). Net Loss after tax for the financial year 2020-
21 was INR 23,930 lakhs as compared to net loss after tax of INR 1,673 for the financial year 2019-20.

Consolidated Financial Details:

Total Revenue from operations for the financial year 2020-21 stood at INR 150,021 lakhs, increased by

15.19% over the last financial year (INR 130,242 lakhs in 2019-20) on account of new plants being made

operational during the year. Net Loss after tax for the financial year 2020-21 was INR 35,877 lakhs as

compared to loss after tax of INR 24,834 lakhs in the financial year 2019-20.

Industry Overview & Economic Outlook

According to the Central Electricity Authority, Indian renewable capacity installed reached 95 GW at the

end of April 30, 2021 with a target to achieve 175 GW of installed solar capacity by 2022. Keeping in view

India’s commitment for a healthy planet with a less carbon intensive economy, in 2015 the Government

of India (the “Government” or “GOI”) decided that 175 GW of renewable energy capacity will be installed

by the year 2022. This includes 100 GW from solar, 60 GW from wind, 10 GW from biomass and 5 GW

from small hydro power. In 2020, Prime Minister of India announced that India’s renewable energy

capacity will seek to achieve a target of 450 GWs by year 2030. The substantial higher capacity target will

ensure greater energy security, improved energy access and enhanced employment opportunities. With the

accomplishment of these ambitious targets, India will become one of the largest Green Energy producers

in the world, surpassing several developed countries.

India is one of the most populous democracy in the world with a population of around 1.4 billion. India’s

real GDP contracted by 8.7% in 2020 on the back of a COVID-19 induced economic crisis. The Indian

economy recorded growth in the six months ended March 31, 2021, following negative growth in the six

months ended September 30, 2020. According to the revised estimates of Reserve Bank of India, India’s

projected GDP grew 0.4% in the third quarter of fiscal year 2021. (Source:

https://rbidocs.rbi.org.in/rdocs/Publications/PDFs/MPRA202113A99DAD95344334BF6145CCBB26

A744.PDF).

An efficient, resilient, and financially robust power sector is essential for the growth of the Indian

economy. A series of reforms in the 1990s and the Electricity Act 2003 have moved the Indian power

sector towards being a competitive market with multiple buyers and sellers supported by regulatory and

oversight bodies. India’s annual per capita electricity consumption reached 1.2 MWh in fiscal year 2019-

2020. (Source: https://cea.nic.in/wp-content/uploads/executive/2021/02/exe_summary.pdf). Although

the annual per capita power consumption of India has grown significantly from 0.8 MWh in fiscal year

2010-11 to 1.2 MWh in 2019-20, it is among the lowest in the world. (Source: https://cea.nic.in/wp-

content/uploads/executive/2021/02/exe_summary.pdf). According to the International Energy Agency,

the annual per capita electricity consumption of India was 1.0 MWh in fiscal year 2018, whereas countries

like China and the United States had a per capita electricity consumption of 4.9 MWh and 13.1 MWh,

respectively, in fiscal year 2018. (Source: http://energyatlas.iea.org/#!/tellmap/-1118783123). There are

various factors such as electrification rates, purchasing power, market saturation and electrical heating or

cooling requirements, which impacts the per capita consumption levels globally. The electricity

consumption and peak demand have grown at a CAGR of 5.0% and 4.6%, respectively, in the last 10 years

(February 2011 to February 2021).

(Source: https://cea.nic.in/wp-content/uploads/executive/2021/02/exe_summary.pdf)

Electricity demand is expected to rise in the future due to increased electrification. Major efforts are being
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taken by the Government to meet the targets of renewable energy in the country, including: 

• permitting Foreign Direct Investment up to 100 percent under the automatic route;

• strengthening the terms of PPAs; introduction of guidelines on power curtailments, policies on tariff

adoption, force majeure event guidelines;

• mandating the requirement of Letter of Credit (“LC”) as payment security mechanism by distribution

licensees for ensuring timely payments to renewable energy generators;

• setting up of Ultra Mega Renewable Energy Parks to provide land and transmission on plug and play

basis to investors;

• waiver of Inter State Transmission System (“ISTS”) charges and losses for inter-state sale of solar and

wind power for projects to be commissioned by June 30, 2023;

• notification of standard bidding guidelines to enable distribution licensee to procure solar and wind

power at competitive rates in cost effective manner;

• declaration of trajectory of Renewable Purchase Obligation (“RPO”) for Solar as well as Non-solar,

uniformly for all States/ Union Territories, reaching 21% of RPO by 2022 with 10.5% for solar based

electricity;

• laying of transmission lines under the Green Energy Corridor Scheme for evacuation of Power in

renewable rich states;

• launching of new schemes, such as, Pradhan Mantri Kisan Urja Suraksha evem Utthan Mahabhiyan

(“PM-KUSUM”), for farmers to install solar pumps and grid connected solar and other renewable

power plants in the country;

• setting up 12,000 MWs of grid connected solar photovoltaic (“PV”) power projects for use by the

Government and Government entities as part of the Central Public Sector Undertaking (“CPSU”)

Scheme Phase II to facilitate national energy security and environment sustainability for Government

purposes;

• setting up scheme for procurement of blended wind power from 2500 MW ISTS connected projects;

• renewable energy projects with priority sector lending status for loans up to a limit of Rs 30 crore.

• launching of Production linked Incentive Scheme– ‘National Programme on Advanced Chemistry Cell

(ACC) Battery Storage’ for achieving manufacturing capacity of 50 Giga Watt Hour (GWh) of ACC

and 5 GWh of "Niche" ACC with an outlay of INR 18,100 crores;

• launching of Production linked Incentive Scheme- ‘National Programme on High Efficiency Solar PV

Modules’, aiming to build self sufficiency in Solar Modules.

Regulatory Updates 

• Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process for Procurement of Solar Power 

The Ministry of Power has issued guidelines on August 3, 2017, as amended on September 25, 2020,

for procurement of solar power through tariff based competitive bidding process (“Competitive

Bidding Guidelines”). The Competitive Bidding Guidelines aim to enable the distribution licensees

to procure solar power at competitive rates in a cost-effective manner.

These Guidelines have been issued under the provisions of Section 63 of the Electricity Act for long

term procurement of electricity, determined through the competitive bidding process, by the procurers,

the distribution licensees, or the authorized representatives(s), or an intermediary procurer from grid-

connected Solar PV Power Projects having size of 5 MW and above or 50 MW and above, respectively.

New Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process will help to reduce risk, enhance

transparency and increase affordability of Solar Power.
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• Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process for Procurement of Round-The-

Clock Power                 from Grid Connected Renewable Energy Power Projects, complemented with 

Power from any other source or storage 

The Ministry of Power has issued guidelines on July 22, 2020, as amended on November 3, 2020, and

February 5, 2021, for procurement of round-the-clock power by DISCOMs from grid-connected

renewable energy sources, complemented with firm power from any other source (“Round-The-Clock

Guidelines”). The Round-The-Clock Guidelines mandate supply of at least 85% energy annually and

85% availability during peak hours, of which at least 51% of the annual energy offered corresponds to

renewable energy power and the rest is   from other sources. The obligation to supply energy during peak

hours provides flexibility to DISCOMs and drives the need to integrate renewable energy with other

sources.

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff Determination 

from Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2020 

CERC notified the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff

Determination from Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2020 (the “Tariff Regulations 2020”)

on June 23,      2020. These regulations came into force from July 1, 2020, and shall remain effective till

March 31, 2023, unless reviewed earlier or extended by CERC. The Tariff Regulations 2020 superseded

the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Tariff Determination from

Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2017 with effect from July 1, 2020. Under the Tariff Regulations

2020, CERC has specified certain parameters for determination of tariff for new sources of renewable

energy such as floating solar project, renewable hybrid energy project and renewable energy project with

storage in addition to those covered in past tariff regulations. In case of renewable energy projects for

which generic tariff has to be determined as per these regulations, it will be done through a tariff order

at least one month before the commencement of the year for each year of the control period, which is

from July 2020 to March 2023. The other tariff, which is project specific, shall be determined by the

CERC on a case-to-case basis for, amongst others, solar PV power projects, floating solar projects, solar

thermal power projects, renewable hybrid energy projects and renewable energy with storage projects.

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and 

Losses) Regulations, 2020 (“CERC Transmission Charges Regulations 2020”) 

The CERC, pursuant to the notification dated May 4, 2020, has announced the CERC Transmission

Charges Regulations 2020. As per the CERC Transmission Charges Regulations 2020, transmission

charges and losses for the use of ISTS are not payable for solar power based projects whose useful life

has been commissioned during the period from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2017. The CERC Transmission

Charges Regulations 2020 has come into force from November 1, 2020 and has superseded the CERC

Transmission Charges Regulations 2010. On June 21, 2021, while superseding its notifications dated

January 15, 2021, November 6, 2019 and August 5, 2020, the Ministry of Power, inter alia, exempted

solar based generating projects commissioned until June 30, 2025 which were selling power to

distribution licensees, whether under RPO or not, from the applicability of ISTS transmission charges

for a period of 25 years from the date of commissioning of the power plants, provided the power has

been competitively procured under the guidelines issued by the Central Government.

• ALMM List I notification, Notification dated March 10, 2021 

The Govt. has notified its first list of approved Solar PV modules (List I) under the Approved List of

Models and Manufacturers (ALMM) order. This has been a long awaited step for the domestic solar

manufacturing industry and is considered to be equivalent to a non-tariff import barrier. Foreign solar

PV manufacturers are absent from the first list.
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• Basic custom duty imposition on solar cells & modules 

The Government has notified its approval and decision to impose a basic customs duty (“BCD”) of
40% on solar modules, and 25% on solar cells, with effect from April 1, 2022, to curb imports and
promote domestic manufacturing. The Government further clarified that solar developers need to take
this into account for bidding going forward, and that this BCD imposition shall no longer be considered
to be a change in law event, for future bids.

• Inter-state transmission system waiver expiration 

The Ministry of Power, in August 2020, waived inter-state transmission system (“ISTS)” charges and
losses on all solar and wind projects commissioned before June 30, 2023. In January 2021, the Ministry
of Power announced that it will not deprive renewable power projects of a waiver on charges and losses
if they are commissioned after June 20, 2023, due to delays caused by the transmission provider or the
government agency or due to force majeure.

• Production linked incentive (PLI) scheme 

The PLI scheme was announced in the budget 2021-22. The Finance Minister announced capital
Augmentation of Solar Energy Corporation of India Limited (SECI) and Indian Renewable Energy
Development Agency Limited (IREDA). To give a further boost to the non-conventional energy sector,
additional capital infusion of INR1,000 crores to Solar Energy Corporation of India and INR 1,500
crores to Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency will be provided.

• Integrated Day Ahead Market 

Pursuant to a notification dated March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Power, India, an integrated day-ahead
market (“Integrated DAM”) is expected to be launched at the power exchanges with separate price
formation for power generated from renewable energy and conventional power. According to this
notification, the proposed market structure should allow the buyer to meet the RPO target by directly
buying green power from the exchange. The notification is proposed to be implemented by June 30,
2021.

• Green Term Ahead Market 

Indian Power Market commenced trading in Green Term Ahead Market (GTAM) on August 21, 2020.

GTAM contracts will allow additional avenues to the RE generators for sale of renewable energy;

enable Obligated entities to procure renewable power at competitive prices to meet their Renewable

Purchase Obligations (RPO). Transactions through GTAM will be bilateral in nature with clear

identification of corresponding buyers and sellers, there will not be any difficulty in accounting for

RPO. GTAM contracts will be segregated into Solar RPO & Non-Solar RPO as RPO targets are also

segregated. Energy scheduled through GTAM contract shall be considered as deemed RPO compliance

of the buyer. This will also allow renewable energy rich states to trade the surplus power into the power

exchange and RE deficit states would buy to balance their RPO targets.

External Environment 

Due to the industry and geographic diversity of our projects, our operations are subject to a variety of 

rules and regulations. If we are not in compliance with applicable legal requirements, we may be subject 

to civil or criminal penalties and other remedial measures. Below are the principal laws and regulations 

currently governing the businesses of our Indian subsidiaries. The laws and regulations set out below are 

not exhaustive and are only intended to provide general information to the investors and are neither 

designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice. 

• The Electricity Act, 2003.

• The National Electricity Policy, 2005.

• The National Tariff Policy 2016.
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• Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process for Procurement of Solar Power.

• Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process for Procurement of Round-The-Clock Power

from Grid Connected Renewable Energy Power Projects, complemented with Power from any other

source or storage.

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Tariff Determination from

Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2020.

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulations, 2010.

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Open Access in Inter-State Transmission) Regulations,

2008 (the “CERC Open Access Regulations”)

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Grant of Connectivity, Long term Access and Medium-

term Open Access in inter State Transmission and related matters) Regulations, 2009 (“CERC

Connectivity & Access Regulations”)

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses)

Regulations, 2020 (“CERC Transmission Charges Regulations 2020”)

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Deviation settlement Mechanism and related matters)

Regulations, 2014 (“F&S Regulations”)

• Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Recognition and Issuance of

Renewable Energy Certificate for Renewable Energy Generation) Regulations, 2010 (“REC

Regulations”

• The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy

• Jawaharlal Nehru National Solar Mission

• Viability Gap Funding Support from National Clean Energy Fund

• National Institute of Solar Energy (“NISE”)

• Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited

• Renewable Purchase Obligations

• Ujjwal Discom Assurance Yojana (“UDAY”)

• Integrated Power Development Scheme

• Integrated Day Ahead Market

• Green Term Ahead Market

• Safety and Environmental Laws

• National Action Plan on Climate Change

• Labor Laws

• State Regulations

a) Rajasthan Solar Energy Policy, 2019 (Rajasthan)

b) Draft Karnataka Renewable Energy Policy 2021-2026 (Karnataka)

c) Karnataka Solar Policy 2014-2021

d) Karnataka Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Open Access)

Regulations 2004 (“KERC Open Access Regulations”)

e) The Karnataka Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Procurement from Renewable Sources

by Distribution Licensee and Renewable Energy Certificate Framework) Regulations 2011

(“KERC Regulations”)

f) (Punjab Solar Policy, 2012)

g) APERC-Renewable Purchase Obligation (Compliance by purchase of Renewable Energy/
Renewable Energy Certificates) Regulation, 2017

h) Andhra Pradesh Solar Power Policy, 2018
i) Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission Regulatory Commission Forecasting,

Scheduling and Deviation Settlement of Solar and Wind Generation Regulations, 2017
j) Andhra Pradesh Renewable Energy Export Policy, 2020
k) Gujarat Solar Power Policy, 2021
l) Gujarat Electricity Regulatory Commission (Forecasting, Scheduling, Deviation Settlement and

Related Matters for Solar and Wind Generation Sources) Regulations, 2019
m) Uttar Pradesh Solar Energy Policy, 2017
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n) Telangana Solar Power Policy 2015 (“Telangana Solar Policy”)
o) Assam Solar Energy Policy, 2017 (“Assam Solar Policy”)
p) Comprehensive Policy for Grid-connected Power Projects based on New and Renewable (Non-

conventional) Energy Sources – 2015
q) Bihar Policy for Promotion of New and Renewable Energy Sources, 2017

COVID-19 Impact: 

The COVID-19 pandemic’s adverse impacts on the business, financial position, results of operations, and 
prospects of Azure Power group of Companies could be significant. The COVID-19 pandemic has created 
disruptions to the global economy and to the lives of individuals throughout the world. Governments, 
businesses, and the public have taken unprecedented actions to contain the spread of COVID-19 and to 
mitigate its effects, including quarantines, travel bans, shelter-in-place orders, closures of businesses and 
schools, fiscal stimulus, and other regulatory changes. The Government of India imposed a nationwide 
lockdown in India on March 25, 2020 which continued until May 31, 2020, while gradually relaxing 
restriction during the period. Due to this lockdown, construction work on our solar projects stopped for 
several weeks, which resulted in some impact to our construction timelines. A second wave of COVID-19 
infections have severely impacted India in April, May and June 2021. This second wave in India has seen 
new peaks in daily cases, daily deaths, active cases and positivity rates. The second wave has resulted in 
significant strain on the health infrastructure in the country resulting in several states announcing lockdown 
measures. Due to this second wave of infection in India, several state governments including Maharashtra, 
Rajasthan and the National Capital Region announced partial lockdowns during the months of April, May 
and June 2021. These lock downs and the COVID-19 pandemic have impacted and continue to impact 
construction work on our projects and the availability of labor, components and material. Even after the 
lockdowns are lifted or eased, Azure Power group of Companies may continue to experience disruption in 
our construction activities and supply of components and materials till the supply chains are fully restored. 
Several of our employees have also been infected with the COVID-19 virus over in Fiscal 2021 and in 
Fiscal 2022 during the first and second wave. Accordingly, we have and may continue to lose key 
management and employee hours due to COVID-19 related illness and related issues. 

Governments and organizations have broadly revised Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth forecasts 
downward in response to the economic slowdown caused by the spread of COVID-19 and it is possible 
that the COVID-19 outbreak may cause a prolonged economic crisis or recession. While the scope, 
duration and full effects of the second wave of COVID-19 are rapidly evolving and not fully known, the 
pandemic and related efforts to contain it have disrupted global and domestic economic activity, adversely 
affected the functioning of financial markets, impacted interest rates, increased economic and market 
uncertainty, and disrupted trade and supply chains. While these impacts continue, they will result in 
sustained economic stress or recession in India and many of the risk factors could be exacerbated and such 
effects could have a material adverse impact on us in a number of ways related to liquidity, operations, 
customer demand, interest rate risk, and human capital, as described in more detail below. 

a) Liquidity Risk. Our success may be affected by a variety of external factors that may affect the price or
marketability of our products and services, including disruptions in the capital markets, changes in interest
rates that may increase our funding costs, reduced demand for our solar products due to economic
conditions and the various response of governmental and nongovernmental authorities. The COVID-19
pandemic has significantly increased economic and demand uncertainty and has led to disruption and
volatility in the global and domestic capital markets, which could increase the cost of capital and adversely
impact access to capital. A period of extremely volatile and unstable market conditions would likely increase
our funding costs and negatively affect market risk mitigation strategies. Furthermore, the volatility in
global and domestic capital markets may cause increased volatility in currency exchange rates reducing our
ability, or increase the costs, to mitigate these risks. Any depreciation of the Indian rupee could result in
higher hedging cost and increased costs of imports for us. In addition, foreign exchange hedges on our
restricted groups have a cap and heightened volatility in foreign exchange rates may result in additional
payments.

b) Strategic Risk: As a result of the business shutdown and facilities closures, the global and domestic
economy has significantly slowed down, resulting in reduced electricity demand in India and globally.
Customer demand for electricity may not swiftly recover to pre-COVID-19 level or at all, due to the
potential of a prolonged global or domestic economic crisis or recession. Economic downturns may alter
the priorities of governments (including the Government of India) to subsidize and/or incentivize
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participation in markets in which we operate. The global economic crisis may also prompt the Indian 
government to enact emergency measures such as electricity tariff adjustments to ease the financial burden 
on economically disadvantaged customers, each of which could have an adverse impact on our financial 

conditions, results of operations, and cash flows.

c) Operational Risk: Current and future restrictions on our workforce’s access to any of our facilities and
the health and availability of our workforce in constructing our solar projects could limit our ability to meet
customer expectations and have a material adverse effect on our operations. We may experience increased
difficulties in receiving payments from our distribution customers. These customers may not have adequate
liquidity or may have greater difficulties in settling their electricity bills. Further, in response to COVID-
19, our employees are working remotely from their homes but technology in employees’ homes may not
be as robust as in our offices and could cause the networks, information systems, applications, and other
tools available to employees to be more limited or less reliable than in our offices. The continuation of
work-from-home measures introduces additional operational risk, especially cybersecurity risk. These cyber
risks include greater phishing, malware, and other cybersecurity attacks, vulnerability to disruptions of our
information technology infrastructure and telecommunications systems for remote operations, increased
risk of unauthorized dissemination of confidential information, limited ability to restore systems in the
event of a systems failure or interruption, and a greater risk of a security breach resulting in destruction or
misuse of valuable information.

Due to inadequate medical infrastructure in India, our employees may be at risk of not being able to access 
healthcare to treat COVID. Several of our employees have also been infected with the COVID-19 virus 
over in Fiscal 2021 and in Fiscal 2022 during the second wave. 

Moreover, we rely on many suppliers and contractors. During the current year, we have faced several 
challenges and continue to face challenges currently to obtain materials from our suppliers and materials 
we do obtain often are at higher prices than in the past year. Certain suppliers have refused to provide 
material at the prices agreed under the terms of our supply agreements with them and have asked for price 
increases. Any further, fluctuations in prices of material could have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We also rely on local and federal 
government agencies, offices, and other third parties in obtaining permits, conducting construction of our 
projects and transporting our solar products. In light of responses to the pandemic, these entities may limit 
the availability and access of their services. For example, we rely on frequent facility maintenance and 
improvement through operation and maintenance (“O&M”) activities to maintain efficient operation of 
our facilities. The COVID-19 pandemic could potentially limit our O&M activities due to labor shortages, 
materials, and limited availability of third-party service providers, resulting in an adverse impact on our 
revenues which may not be covered through insurance, as COVID-19 related risks are not covered under 
several of our existing insurance policies. If suppliers and third-party service providers continue to have 
limited capacities for a prolonged period or if additional limitations or potential disruptions in these services 
materialize, it may negatively affect our operations. Further, we may have disputes with suppliers, 
contractors or customers that could lead to litigation or arbitration due to contractual force majeure notices. 

d) Delay in Legal Matters: The extension of the nationwide lockdown due to COVID-19 or other localised
lockdowns/disruptions pandemic have delayed important legal hearings relating to legal proceedings to
which we are a party. The commissions and courts during such period have only been hearing matters of
urgent nature. If courts and commissions continue to have limited hearings for a prolonged period, it may
lead to delay in finalization of our legal cases and may have negative impact on our operations.

Because there have been no comparable recent global pandemics that resulted in a similar global impact, 
we do not yet know the full extent of COVID-19’s effects on our business, operations, or the global 
economy as a whole. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak impacts our business, results of 
operations and financial condition will depend on future developments, including the timeliness and 
effectiveness of actions taken or not taken to contain and mitigate the effects of COVID-19 both in India 
and internationally by governments, central banks, healthcare providers, health system participants, other 
businesses, and individuals, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. The uncertain future 
development of this crisis could materially and adversely affect our business, operations, operating results, 
financial condition, liquidity or capital levels. 
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3. CURRENT SIZE OF OPERATIONS:

Operational – 1990 MW

Azure Power group of Companies operated 45 utility scale projects with a combined rated capacity of

1990 MWs as of March 31, 2021 which represents a compound annual growth rate, or CAGR, of 78%,

since March 2009.

Under construction – 965 MW

As on March 31, 2021, we were also constructing a combined rated capacity of 965 MWs comprising of

utility scale projects of 65 MWs of Assam 1 and 300 MWs of Rajasthan 6, 300 MWs of Rajasthan 8 and

300 MWs of Rajasthan 9.

The group also had an additional 4,000 MWs Contracted & Awarded, bringing our total Operating,

Contracted & Awarded capacity to 6,955 MWs. Contracted & Awarded megawatts include 4,000 MWs

for which we have received Letters of Award (“LOA”) but the Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs”)

have yet to be signed.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Company has incurred the loss of INR 23,930 lakhs during the year under review, hence the Board

of Directors of your company does not recommend distribution of any dividend for the financial year

ended on March 31, 2021.

5. RESERVES:

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the reserves in the
Balance Sheet for the year under review.

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2021, your company is subsidiary of Azure Power Global Limited (a company incorporated at 

Mauritius and listed at New York Stock Exchange) and has 50 Indian subsidiaries, 1 foreign subsidiary and 1

associate Company. All the Indian subsidiaries are engaged in the business of operating solar power

projects. In the previous year 2019-20, Six of the subsidiary Companies (direct & indirect) had filed the

application under Fast Track Exit (FTE) scheme for striking off their names from the Register of

Companies with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.

During the year under review, companies listed in Annexure-I to this report have become or ceased to

be company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. A report on the performance and

financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies as per the Companies

Act, 2013 in Form No. AOC-1 is attached herewith as Annexure-II.

7. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND OTHER COMPANIES DURING
THE  YEAR.

a) As on 31st March, 2021, your Company had an investment in various subsidiary companies as per table

below:

Sr. 
No. 

Details of Investment in the Equity Shares of 
Subsidiaries 

As at 
March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 
(INR in Lakhs) 

1. 
1,26,523 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,26,523) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power (Punjab) 
Private Limited 

1,813 1,813 
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2. 
49,12,787 shares (March 31, 2020: 49,12,787) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power (Haryana) 
Private Limited 

3,929 3,929 

3. 10,93,521 (March 31, 2020: 10,93,521) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Solar Private Limited 

10,729 10,729 

4. 
98,873 (March 31, 2020: 98,873) equity shares of INR 10/- 
each fully paid up in Azure Power (Rajasthan) Private 
Limited 

2,591 2,591 

5. 
54,692 shares (March 31, 2020: 54,692) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Solar Solutions 
Private Limited* 

1,240 1,240 

6. 
75,623 shares (March 31, 2020: 75,623) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Sun Energy Private 
Limited* 

635 635 

7. 1,04,532 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,04,532) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Urja Private Limited 

6,335 6,335 

8. 44,898 shares (March 31, 2020: 44,898) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Surya Private Limited 

1,523 1,523 

9. 
37,776 shares (March 31, 2020: 37,776) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power (Karnataka) 
Private Limited 

1,001 1,001 

10.
3,40,458 shares (March 31, 2020: 3,40,458) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Photovoltaic Private 
Limited 

8,989 8,989 

11.
1,96,054 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,96,054) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Infrastructure 
Private Limited 

9,460 9,460 

12.
4,17,742 shares (March 31, 2020: 4,17,742) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power (Raj.) Private 
Limited 

9,115 9,115 

13.
56,402 shares (March 31, 2020: 56,402) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Green Tech Private 
Limited 

7,059 7,059 

14.
1,22,893 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,22,893) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Renewable Energy 
Private Limited 

3,004 3,004 

15.
46,354 shares (March 31, 2020: 46,354) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Clean Energy Private 
Limited 

6,581 6,581 

16.
2,16,325 shares (March 31, 2020: 2,16,325) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Sunrise Private 
Limited 

9,100 9,100 

17.
19,731 shares (March 31, 2020: 19,731) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Sunlight Private 
Limited* 

512 512 

18.
56,335 shares (March 31, 2020: 56,335) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Sunshine Private 
Limited 

3,509 3,509 

19.
4,59,770 shares (March 31, 2020: 4,59,770) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Earth Private 
Limited 

17,154 17,154 

20.
71,445 shares (March 31, 2020: 71,445) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Eris Private 
Limited 

2,205 2,205 

21.
85,374 shares (March 31, 2020: 85,374) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Jupiter Private 
Limited 

3,757 3,757 
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22.
2,68,474 shares (March 31, 2020: 2,68,474) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Makemake 
Private Limited 

7,626 7,626 

23.
1,24,583 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,24,583) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Mars Private 
Limited 

1,101 1,101 

24.
4,63,887 shares (March 31, 2020: 4,63,887) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Mercury 
Private Limited 

1,600 1,600 

25.
7,76,874 shares (March 31, 2020: 7,76,874) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Pluto Private 
Limited 

24,914 24,914 

26.
1,26,640 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,26,640) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Uranus Private 
Limited 

1,239 1,239 

27.
1,65,135 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,65,135) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Venus Private 
Limited 

5,028 5,028 

28.
13,60,895 shares (March 31, 2020:  13,60,895) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Saturn 
Private Limited 

4,002 4,002 

29.
9,28,836 shares (March 31, 2020: 9,28,836) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Three 
Private Limited 

35,713 35,713 

30.
29,52,087 shares (March 31, 2020: 29,52,087) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Four 
Private Limited 

15,904 15,904 

31.
1,00,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 40,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Five 
Private Limited 

10 4 

32.
1,17,446 (March 31, 2020: 1,17,446) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Six Private 
Limited 

6,693 6,693 

33.
36,40,673 shares (March 31, 2020: 36,40,673) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty 
Seven Private Limited 

5,607 5,607 

34.
2,36,082 shares (March 31, 2020: 2,36,082) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Eight 
Private Limited 

3,886 3,886 

35.
86,765 shares (March 31, 2020: 86,765) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Thirty Nine 
Private Limited 

604 604 

36.
25,13,077 shares (March 31, 2020: 25,13,077) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty 
Private Limited 

13,059 13,059 

37.
10,82,632 shares (March 31, 2020: 10,82,632) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty One 
Private Limited 

28,992 28,992 

38.
90,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 40,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Two 
Private Limited 

9 4 

39.
12,22,477 shares (March 31, 2020: 12,22,477) equity shares 
of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Three 
Private  Limited 

34,191 34,191 

40.
2,82,976 shares (March 31, 2020: 2,82,976) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Four 
Private Limited 

4,513 4,513 

41.
32,300 shares (March 31, 2020: 32,300) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Five 
Private Limited** 

- 3 
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* Investments have been classified as current investments during the current year.

** During the previous year the Company had applied to the Registrar of Companies (ROC) for striking off the names of certain 
subsidiaries from the register of companies which have been approved by ROC subsequently. These investments were diminished 
during the previous year. 

#Pursuant to the share purchase agreement dated 22 April 2021 executed between the Azure Power India Private Limited 
(Seller), Avaada Sustainable RJProject Private Limited (Purchaser) and Azure Power Forty Six Private Limited (SPV) 
including the subsequent amendment, through Letter Agreement dated 18 May 2021, the Seller had transferred its entire stake 
constituting the 100% paid-up share capital of the SPV in favor of the Purchaser and its nominee. 

42.
9,87,807 shares (March 31, 2020: 9,87,807) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Six 
Private Limited# 

5,654 5,654 

43.
31,800 shares (March 31, 2020: 31,800) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Seven 
Private Limited** 

- 3 

44.
32,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 32,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Eight 
Private Limited** 

- 3 

45.
32,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 32,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Forty Nine 
Private Limited** 

- 3 

46.
32,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 32,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Private 
Limited** 

- 3 

47.
7,22,005 shares (March 31, 2020: 1,00,890) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Maple Private 
Limited 

5,405 405 

48.
15,43,001 shares (March 31, 2020: 15,43,001) equity shares 
of US$ 1 each fully paid up in Azure Power US Inc. 

951 951 

49.
3,10,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 10,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty One 
Private Limited 

31 1 

50.
3,10,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 10,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Two 
Private Limited 

31 1 

51.
1,10,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 10,000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Three 
Private Limited 

11 1 

52.
10,0000 shares (March 31, 2020: 10,0000) equity shares of 
INR 10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Four 
Private Limited 

1 1 

53.
10,0000 shares (March 31, 2020: Nil) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Five Private 
Limited 

1 - 

54.
10,0000 shares (March 31, 2020: Nil) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Six Private 
Limited 

1 - 

55.
10,0000 shares (March 31, 2020: Nil) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Seven Private 
Limited 

1 - 

56.
10,0000 shares (March 31, 2020: Nil) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Azure Power Fifty Eight Private 
Limited 

1 -
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b) As on 31st March, 2021, your Company had an investment in other companies as per table below:

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the financial year in review there were/ there was no change(s) in the nature of the business carried out 

by the Company. 

9. CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY:

Under the provision of section 12 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company within the city changed its 

previous registered office address from 3rd Floor, Asset 301-304, WorldMark-3, Aerocity, New Delhi -

110037 to 5th Floor, Southern Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket New Delhi, South Delhi- 110017. The 

change of registered office address is effective from the date of approval accorded by the members of 

Finance Committee of the Company vide resolution passed i.e., October 01, 2020. 

10. TRADEMARK & PATENT

As on March 31, 2021, following is the status of Trademarks & Patents registered in the name of the 
Company or applied for: 

Sr. 
No. 

Details of Investment in the CCDs of Subsidiaries 
As at 

March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 
(INR in Lakhs) 

1. 3,20,758 CCD 0.0% (March 31, 2020: 3,20,758) in Azure 
Power Thirty Seven Private Limited 

8,500 8,500 

2. 1,70,183 CCD 10.25% (March 31, 2020: 1,70,183) in Azure 
Power Forty Three Private Limited 

5,000 5,000 

Sr. 
No. 

Details of Investment in the Equity Shares of 
Associates 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

(INR) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

(INR) 

1. 2,600 shares (March 31, 2020: 2,600) equity shares of INR 
10/- each fully paid up in Waaree Power Private Limited 

26,000 26,000 

Trademark Application No. Date of Filing Status Class 

Azure Power 2047922 01-11-2010 Registered 7 

Azure Power 2321066 24-04-2012 Registered 35 

Azure Power 2047923 01-11-2010 Registered 37 

Azure Power 2321067 24-04-2012 Registered 40 

Solar Power Solutions Simplified 2071520 21-12-2010 Registered. 37 

Solar as a Service 2071517 21-12-2010 Registered. 7 

Solar as a Service 2071518 21-12-2010 Registered. 37 

2071521 21-12-2010 Registered. 7 

2071522 21-12-2010 Registered. 37 

Solar Power Simplified 2246499 08-12-2011 Registered 7 
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Matter No./ Docket Id 
for Patents 

Application No. Status of Application Title 

PA00045 492/DEL/2012 
Application in Amended 
Stage 

System and method for pre-
paid power module 

PA00046 524/DEL/2012 
Application in Amended 
Stage 

System and method for solar 
panel array sun tracking 

PA00100 3910/DEL/2014 
Application in Amended 
Stage 

System and method for remote 
photovoltaic power generation 
health monitoring 

PA00193 201611021203 
Application awaiting 
examination 

A thin-film photovoltaic 
mounting assembly 

PA00366 201711029640 
Application awaiting 
examination 

A system and method for 
performing at least one action 
on a solar panel 

PA00367 201711029639 
Application awaiting 
examination 

A system and method for 
generating electricity 

PT/2018/12153 201811031590 
Application Not Yet 
Published 

System, apparatus and method 
for power generation and 
scheduling 

PA00803 201811043418 
Application Not Yet 
Published 

A system and method for 
monitoring and maintenance of 

Solar Power Simplified 2246498 08-12-2011 Registered 37 

Power to be free! 2246497 08-12-2011 Registered 7 

Power to be Free 2321074 24-04-2012 Registered 35 

Power to be free! 2246496 08-12-2011 Registered 37 

Power to be free 2321075 24-04-2012 Registered 40 

2321064 24-04-2012 Registered 35 

2321065 24-04-2012 Registered 40 

Azure 2321076 24-04-2012 Registered 7 

Azure 2321077 24-04-2012 Registered 35 

Azure 2321078 24-04-2012 Registered 37 

Azure 2321079 24-04-2012 Registered 40 

2892073 29-01-2015 Registered. 7 

2892074 29-01-2015 Registered. 35 

2892075 29-01-2015 Registered. 37 

2892076 29-01-2015 Registered. 40 

Solar As a Service 2321073 24-04-2012 Awaiting hearing. 40 
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power plants 

PT/2019/12781 201911023119 
Application Not Yet 
Published 

System and method of 
processing sales outstanding 
and accounts receivables 

11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No Material changes has occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company to which the

balance sheet relates and the date of the report.

12. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No such orders have been passed in relation with your company.

13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
Company’s internal controls are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations. These have been

designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing reliable financial and

operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use,

executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring compliance of corporate policies. Based on the

framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company,

work performed by the internal and statutory auditors and external consultants, including audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors, and the reviews performed by

management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion

that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2020 -21.

14. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence, no amount on account of principal or

interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

15. AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT:

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s MSKA &

Associates (FRN: 105047W), Chartered Accountants, has been appointed as statutory auditors of the

Company from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September

25, 2019 till the conclusion of the AGM for the financial year 2023-24.

Statutory Auditors of the Company have not given any qualified opinion on the Consolidated and Standalone

Financial Statements.

Cost Auditors 
Pursuant to the provision of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, M/s Saurabh Mishra & Associates (FRN: 002680) were appointed as Cost Auditor of the 
Company for the financial year 2020-21. 
The Cost Auditors have not given any qualified opinion on the Cost records of the Company. 

Secretarial Auditors 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, M/s 
Abhishek Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (M. No. 9857) were appointed as Secretarial 
Auditors to undertake Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. 
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The Secretarial Auditor have not given any qualified opinion on the Secretarial records and compliances of 
the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The said report in form no. MR-3 is attached herewith as 
Annexure-III. 

16. CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE:
As on 31st March 2021, following was the Share Capital & Debt structure of the Company.

Particulars No. of Shares 
Face Value 

(INR) 
Total Amount 

(INR) 
Authorised Share Capital 
Equity Shares 
Preference Shares 

4,33,33,333 
8,66,66,667 

10/- 
10/- 

43,33,33,330 
86,66,66,670 

Issued Share Capital 
Equity Shares 
Preference Shares 

45,51,443 
- 

10/- 
- 

4,55,14,430 
- 

Subscribed Share Capital 
Equity Shares 
Preference Shares 

45,51,443 
- 

10/- 
- 

4,55,14,430 
- 

Paid Up Share Capital 
Equity Shares 
Preference Shares 

45,51,443 
- 

10/- 
- 

4,55,14,430 
- 

Particulars No. of NCDs 
Face Value 

(INR) 
Total Amount 

(INR) 
Non-Convertible Debentures 
(NCDs) 

1,90,000 10,000 190,00,00,000 

During the year under review there was no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share 
capital of the Company. 

a) Issue of Shares or other Convertible Securities:
During the year under review the Company had not issued Shares or other Convertible Securities.

b) Issue of equity shares with differential  Rights:
During the year under review, no equity shares with differential voting rights were issued by the Company.

c) Issue of sweat equity shares:
During the year under review, no sweat equity shares were issued by the Company.

d) Issue of employee stock options:
Various Employees, Officers and Directors of the Company have been granted options pursuant to 2016
Equity Incentive Plan (as amended from time to time) of the Parent Company (Azure Power Global
Limited/APGL).

e) Issue of debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities
During the year under review, no debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities issued by the Company.

f) Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the
benefit of employees:
Company has not made any provision for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the
benefit of employees.

17. ANNUAL RETURN:
The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 is available on the website of the Company at
http://investors.azurepower.com/

18. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 the

relevant data pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and
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outgo is as under: - 

a) Conservation of Energy

The company continuously strives to achieve all around efficiency in energy consumption. It has taken

effective energy efficiency measures in all its project companies. During the year under review, this has

helped it to achieve CO2 mitigation/emission of 3,01,2114.94 ton through its projects and of subsidiary

companies.

b) Technology Absorption

The Company selects best available technology and lowest cost capital in its subsidiaries for implementing

Solar Power projects so that the cost of power generation is the lowest and the project companies are in the

position to achieve grid parity in near future only. The Company imports or uses domestic technology, as

required, of high quality, for its projects to maintain lowest cost of power generation and achieve highest

yields. Emphasis is always placed on in-house development of engineering, designing, procurement and

construction supervision processes and technologies.

The Company had invested INR 18 Lakhs towards research and development of Robotic Arm which will

be used for cleaning of modules. This technology will facilitate increase in generation capacity and to

reduce production cost of electricity.

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are as under:

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Our Corporate Social Responsibility program is based on shared values, responsible business and exposure

to voluntary social activities. The government guideline of utilizing minimum 2% of the company’s average

net profit during the immediately three preceding financial year is only a mandate; CSR is much beyond that.

Any CSR project that we take up, we ensure that it is able to make a social and an economic impact. It also

has an effect on the gender equality, caste and yield in the rural area where we intervene. A holistic approach

is what helps us attain sustainability in any project. We truly believe that it’s not just the funds, but true

intentions and actions that go a long way. Keeping all these things in consideration, Company has in place

the CSR Policy & Charter and the CSR Committee which comprises of following Directors w.e.f. from 01

October, 2020:

1. Mr. Mangalath Unnikrishnan (Chairman)
2. Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen (Member)
3. Mr. Deepak Malhotra (Member)

The Company had incurred INR 1.80 Crores (One Crore and Eighty Lakhs) expenses for CSR initiatives for 
the F.Y. 2020-21 covering the sector of Livelihood, Skill Development, Energy, Water and Others including 
the activities of Skill development/Livelihood enhancement, Extension of Skill Development classes, 
distribution of Sewing machines and beautician kits, Installation of RO System, Distribution of Woolen 
Blankets, Construction of tube-wells, Rooftop Hybrid Solar Power, distribution of Covid related 
Masks/PPE’s Kits, Dry Ration/Cooked food, 25kl RWR Water tank, Construction of water tank foundation, 
installation of street lights, Piggery activities etc. at various locations in the state of Andhra Pradesh, Assam, 
Gujarat, Haryana, Karnataka, Punjab, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh and PAN India. 

The Company had also engaged various agencies assisting in CSR activities, providing consultancy services 
etc. The Company ensures to continue the focus on CSR activities in future as well for the betterment of the 
Society and Environment. 

Particulars 
March 31, 2021 

INR (In Lakhs) 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 12 

Foreign Exchange Outgo -
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Detailed report of CSR is as per Annexure – IV 

20. DIRECTORS:

a) Declaration from Independent Directors pursuant to Section 149(6): The provision of Section 149(6) is

not applicable on our Company.

b) As on March 31, 2021, following were the Directors of the Company:

1. Mr. Ranjit Gupta

2. Mr. Mangalath Unnikrishnan

3. Mr. Cyril Sebastien Dominique Cabanes

4. Mr. Barney Sheppard Rush

5. Mr. Arno Lockheart Harris

6. Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen

7. Mr. Deepak Malhotra

During the year under review, Mr. Sanjeev Aggarwal and Mr. Rajendra Prasad Singh has resigned from the 
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from October 05, 2020 and August 19, 2020 respectively. 
Further, Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen, Director and Mr. Mangalath Unnikrishnan, Nominee Director has joined 
the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. August 01, 2020 and August 19, 2020 respectively. 

During the year under review, pursuant to clause 25.1 of the Articles of Association of Company, Mr. Arno 
Lockheart Harris (Non-Executive Director) and Mr. Cyril Sebastien Dominique Cabanes (Nominee Director) 
were re-elected on the Company’s Board of Directors. 

21. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

For the financial year in review, the Board of Directors had 6 Board meetings which were in compliance with

the relevant provisions of all the applicable laws and rules.

22. BOARD COMMITTEE’S:

A. Finance Committee:
Finance Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Ranjit Gupta, Mr. Murali Subramanian, and Mr.
Pawan Kumar Agrawal as members of the Committee. Finance Committee of the Company met twenty
six times during the year whereas urgent matters were approved by the members of Finance Committee
though circular resolutions.

B. Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three members including Mr. Barney Rush, Mr.
Arno Harris and Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen respectively. Mr. Arno Harris is the Chair of Audit Committee.
During the year under review members of the Audit Committee met five times.

C. Compensation Committee:
The Compensation Committee of the Company comprises of four members as on date including Mr.
Barney Rush, Mr. Mangalath Unnikrishnan, Mr. Cyril Sebastien Dominique Cabanes and Ms. Supriya
Prakash Sen (who was appointed on 10th June 2021) respectively. Mr. Barney Rush is the Chair of
Compensation Committee of the Company. During the year under review members of the Compensation
Committee four times.

23. COMPLIANCE TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
Your directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of

Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, have been

complied with.
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24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:
Your Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities as per the provisions of Section

186(11)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 except sub-section (1) are not applicable to it. Details of Loans given, Corporate Guarantees provided

and Investments made are as follows:

a. Loans provided to the Subsidiary/Fellow Subsidiary:

Name of Subsidiaries/Fellow Subsidiaries 
March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

Azure Power (Rajasthan) Private Limited  1,150 

Azure Solar Solutions Private Limited  2,210 
Azure Power Earth Private Limited  136 

Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited  2,766 
Azure Power Mercury Private Limited  40 

Azure Power Saturn Private Limited  13 

Azure Power Thirty Three Private Limited  344 
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited  3,470 

Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited  1,215 
Azure Power Thirty Nine Private Limited  34 

Azure Power Forty One Private Limited  29,560 

Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited  28,609 
Azure Power Maple Private Limited  16,326 

Azure Solar Private Limited  300 

b. Corporate Guarantee’s Given:
c.

Name of the Subsidiaries/Fellow Subsidiaries 
March 31, 2021 
(INR in Lakhs) 

Azure Sun Energy Private Limited  1,437 

Azure Sunlight Private Limited  571 
Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited  20,332 

Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited  4,498 

Azure Power Forty Private Limited  36,099 
Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited  195,300 

Azure Power Rooftop (Genco) Private Limited  6,571 
Azure Power Rooftop One Private Limited  10,666 

Azure Power Rooftop Three Private Limited  2,517 

Azure Power Rooftop Five Private Limited  1,445 
Azure Power Maple Private Limited  99,900 

c. Details of the all the intercompany investments: Please refer clause no. 7.

25. DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT:

The Company has made downstream investment of INR 508,497,575/- during the year under review. The

Company also obtained the required Statutory Auditors Certificate certifying that the Company has complied

with applicable FEMA Rules and Regulations with respect to downstream investment made by the Company

being the first level Indian company during the period under review.

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company being a private limited company is not required for any disclosure under section 197 of the

Companies Act, 2103 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has identified the key risks for the business and have made a mitigation plan. Company
activities to maximize opportunities and minimize adversity by considering the following: -

� Identification of risk, define ownership with clearly defined roles and responsibilities;

� Balance between the cost of managing risk and the anticipated benefits;

� Contributing to more efficient use/allocation of capital and resources;

� To encourage and promote an pro-active approach towards risk management;

� Identifying any unmitigated risks and formulating action plans for its treatment through regular review.

28. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED  PARTIES

All the contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the year under review with the

related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year under

review, the Company had not entered into contract/arrangement/transaction with the related parties which

could be considered material and details of such transactions has been provided under Form No. AOC-2

attached herewith as Annexure-V

29. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge

and ability, confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along

with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

30. HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company believes that the development of employees is one of the most important enablers for an

organization. This is being done at both individual and team levels. Sustained development of its employees,

professional and personal, is the hallmark of its human resource policies. The Company values its Human

Resources and is committed to ensure employee satisfaction, development and growth. The Company is

working towards developing a culture of nurturing leaders, encouraging creativity and openness. Cordial

industrial relations and improvements in productivity were maintained at all the Company’s Plants and Offices

during the year under review.



31. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT,2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual

Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Sexual Harassment

Committee (SHC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees

(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. There were two cases reported to

Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) and same were disposed-off post following the procedure defined under

the Act.

32. VIGIL MECHANISM

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy Your Company has in place a well formulated Vigil Mechanism/

Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The policy enables the

employees, Directors and other stakeholders to raise their concern. Mr. Ranjit Gupta was appointed by the

Board in F.Y. 2019-20 as Nominated Director to as designated Director, in accordance with the Companies

Rules, 2014. Further, there was no incident when the access to the Audit Committee was denied to any

employees with respect to vigil mechanism. The policy is posted on the website of the Company at the

following link: investors .az u repower.c01n /corporate-go vernancc /governa nee-documents

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors extend their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the

financial institutions, banks, Government Authorities. The directors appreciate and value the contributions

made by every member the Company.Your Directors also place on record their deep sense of appreciation for

the committed services by the Company's executive and staff.

34. CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

Statements in this Board's Report describing the Company's present position, expectations or forecasts may be

forward-looking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those

expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company's operations include global

and domestic demand and supply conditions, changes in government regulations, tax laws, econorruc

developments within the country and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

��� 
Barney Sheppard Rush 
Chairman 

DIN: 07384044 
Date: 
Place: 
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Ranjit Gupta 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00100872 
Date: 
Place: 

08.09.2021 08.09.2021
New DelhiChevy Chase, MD USA
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Annexure-I 

Information regarding Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate Companies of the Company: 

Information regarding companies which have become or ceased to be company’s subsidiaries, joint venture or 

associate companies. 

1. Companies which have become the subsidiary company during the financial year 2020-21:

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiaries 

1. Azure Power Fifty Five Private Limited 

2. Azure Power Fifty Six Private Limited 

3. Azure Power Fifty Seven Private Limited 

4. Azure Power Fifty Eight Private Limited 
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Annexure-II 
Form AOC-1 

Salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

PART “A”: Subsidiaries 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Subsidiary 

Reporting 
Period 

Reporting 
Currency 

Share 
Capital 

Reserves 
and 

Surplus 

Total 
Assets 

Total 
Liabilities 

Investments Turnover 

Profit/ 
(Loss) 
before 

Taxation 

Provision 
for Tax 

Profit/ 
(Loss) after 

Taxation 

Proposed 
Dividend 

% of 
Share 

Holding 

1.

Azure Power 
(Punjab) 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,265 1,03,969 2,89,896 1,84,662 - 52,066 84,34 2,834 5,600 - 100.00% 

2.

Azure Solar 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
11,846 (31365.2) 24,72,515 24,92,034 - 5,03,324 (3,26,742) (96,023) (2,30,719) - 92.31% 

3.

Azure Power 
(Haryana) 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
49,538 7,530 18,45,538 17,88,469 - 1,93,343 (28,061) (6,908) (21,153) - 99.17% 

4.

Azure Power 
(Rajasthan) 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
989 (70,212) 5,11,256 5,80,479 0 98,640 (22,327) (87,430) 65,103 - 100.00% 

5.

Azure Sun 
Energy 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
756 23,324 1,44,820 1,20,740 0 33,197 (20,166) (9,613) (10,553) - 100.00% 

6.

Azure Urja 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,416 6,25,232 25,60,515 19,33,867 2,49,988 3,71,239 45,622 (32,129) 77,751 - 100.00% 

7.

Azure Surya 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
667 3,18,832 8,96,778 5,77,278 0 1,57,172 65,521 8,241 57,280 - 67.33% 

8.

Azure Power 
(Karnataka) 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
642 1,64,308 7,47,456 5,82,506 0 1,16,006 26,075 7,994 18,081 - 58.87% 

9.

Azure Solar 
Solutions 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
547 (30,355) 2,63,399 2,93,208 0 32,571 (1,04,353) (50,844) (53,509) - 100.00% 

10.

Azure Power 
Infrastructure 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
2,073 9,87,860 38,00,327 28,10,394 0 5,45,650 (44,554) (1,154) (43,400) - 94.59% 
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11.

Azure 
Sunlight 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
197 28,912 81,384 52,275 0 5,558 (15,140) (10,683) (4,457) - 100.00% 

12.

Azure 
Sunrise 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
2,163 (11,593) 74,98,440 75,07,870 0 5,52,192 (2,96,061) 1,23,992 (4,20,053) - 100.00% 

13.

Azure 
Sunshine 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
563 2,72,880 15,91,162 13,17,719 0 2,06,006 32,076 (7,787) 39,863 - 100.00% 

14.

Azure Power 
(Raj.) Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
4,177 7,67,632 29,89,113 22,17,304 0 4,23,523 28,652 29,057 (405) - 100.00% 

15.

Azure 
Photovoltaic 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
3,405 5,76,564 26,71,910 20,91,941 0 4,29,804 (2,208) 17,472 (19,680) - 100.00% 

16.

Azure 
Renewable 
Energy 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,229 (12,648 5,35,297 5,46,717 0 58,239 (1,36,237) (46,459) (89,778) - 100.00% 

17.

Azure Clean 
Energy 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
464 6,94,009 30,51,057 23,56,584 0 4,07,939 1,03,896 16,813 87,083 - 100.00% 

18.

Azure Green 
Tech Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
564 5,12,644 31,57,310 26,44,103 0 4,16,848 67,000 (14,822) 81,822 - 100.00% 

19.

Azure Power 
Earth Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
4,598 11,78,627 66,10,080 54,26,855 0 6,89,410 (2,99,429) (14,644) (3,14,073) - 100.00% 

20.

Azure Power 
Eris Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
714 1,94,748 6,64,367 4,68,905 0 98,541 8,889 5,013 3,876 - 100.00% 

21.

Azure Power 
Mars Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,246 79,258 4,16,969 3,36,464 0 49,537 6,197 680 5,517 - 100.00% 

22.

Azure Power 
Mercury 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
4,639 58,608 2,03,698 1,40,451 0 20,581 (98,378) (13,558) (84,820) - 100.00% 

23.

Azure Power 
Pluto Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 
lakhs 

78 17,140 86,622 69,403 0 13,073 1,288 625 663 - 100.00% 

24.

Azure Power 
Saturn 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
13,609 68,111 5,51,250 4,69,530 0 65,840 (2,86,038) (38,022) (2,48,016) - 100.00% 
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25.

Azure Power 
Jupiter 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,674 3,20,020 30,68,656 27,46,962 0 3,81,625 (49,650) 29,426 (79,076) - 51.01% 

26.

Azure Power 
Makemake 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
2,685 7,62,254 22,80,016 15,15,077 0 3,13,855 45,783 13,578 32,205 - 100.00% 

27.

Azure Power 
Uranus 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,266 55,711 4,36,127 3,79,150 0 62,383 (11,419) (17,250) 5,831 - 100.00% 

28.

Azure Power 
Venus 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,651 2,27,452 24,09,996 2,180,892 0 3,30,258 (44,913) 17,295 (62,208) - 100.00% 

29.

Azure Power 
Thirty Three 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 
lakhs 

93 23,264 1,52,677 1,29,320 0 15,098 (7,436) (418) (7,018) - 100.00% 

30.

Azure Power 
Thirty Four 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
29,521 11,48,385 74,98,359 63,20,453 0 10,48,434 30,247 92,357 (62,110) - 100.00% 

31.

Azure Power 
Thirty Five 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,000 (961) 140 102 0 0 (120) 17 (137) - 100.00% 

32.

Azure Power 
Thirty Six 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,174 4,27,214 30,24,375 25,95,987 0 4,24,715 (24,925) 17,676 (42,601) - 100.00% 

33.

Azure Power 
Thirty Seven 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
36,467 13,07,089 63,92,082 50,48,525 0 8,72,444 (52,864) 73,261 (20,397) - 99.84% 

34.

Azure Power 
Thirty Eight 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
2,361 1,37,403 8,51,716 7,11,952 0 74,818 (2,55,789) (66,931) (1,88,858) - 100.00% 

35.

Azure Power 
Thirty Nine 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
868 54,982 59,729 3,879 0 0 (217) 59 (276) - 100.00% 

36.

Azure Power 
Forty Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
25,131 12,49,787 34,84,286 22,09,368 0 62,784 (3,427) 24,000 (27,427) - 100.00% 

37.

Azure Power 
Forty One 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
10,826 28,83,168 70,06,309 41,12,315 0 0 3,980 1,807 2,173 - 100.00% 
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38.

Azure Power 
Forty Two 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
900 (617) 420 137 0 0 (107) 2 (109) - 100.00% 

39.

Azure Power 
Forty Three 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
12,225 38,46,549 2,30,60,581 1,92,01,807 0 3,37,512 21,885 45,534 (23,649) - 100.00% 

40.

Azure Power 
Forty Four 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
2,830 2,60,530 3,66,824 1,03,464 0 75,233 (2,08,639) (35,197) (1,73,442) - 100.00% 

41.

Azure Power 
Forty Six 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
9,878 4,20,248 6,34,100 2,03,974 0 662 (1,33,713) 0 (1,33,713) - 100.00% 

42.

Azure Power 
Maple Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,009 5,07,348 32,92,697 11,40,581 0 0 (3,782) (6,935) 3,153 - 100.00% 

43.
Azure Power 
Us Inc 

2020-21 USD 15,43,001 45,52,815 62,55,397 1,59,581 0 0 1,20,740 0 1,20,740 - 100.00% 

44.

Azure Power 
Fifty One 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
3,100 (473) 3,723 1,096 0 0 (90) 333 (423) - 100.00% 

45.

Azure Power 
Fifty Two 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
3,100 (78) 6,049 3,027 0 0 (72) 6 (78) - 100.00% 

46.

Azure Power 
Fifty Three 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
1,100 (87) 1,596 583 0 0 (87) 0 (87) - 100.00% 

47.

Azure Power 
Fifty Four 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
100 (92) 97 89 0 0 (92) 0 (92) - 100.00% 

48.

Azure Power 
Fifty Five 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
100 (87) 105 92 0 0 (87) 0 (87) - 100.00% 

49.

Azure Power 
Fifty Six 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
100 (87) 105 92 0 0 (87) 0 (87) - 100.00% 

50.

Azure Power 
Fifty Seven 
Private 
Limited 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
100 (94) 106 100 0 0 (94) 0 (94) - 100.00% 

51.
Azure Power 
Fifty Eight 

2020-21 
INR in 

thousands 
100 (88) 106 94 0 0 (88) 0 (88) - 100.00% 
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Private 
Limited 

A. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence commercial Operations

Sl. No. Name of the Companies 

1. Azure Power Thirty Five Private Limited 

2. Azure Power Thirty Nine Private Limited 

3. Azure Power Forty Two Private Limited 

4. Azure Power Fifty One Private Limited 

5. Azure Power Fifty Two Private Limited 

6. Azure Power Fifty Three Private Limited 

7. Azure Power Fifty Four Private Limited 

8. Azure Power Fifty Five Private Limited 

9. Azure Power Fifty Six Private Limited 

10. Azure Power Fifty Seven Private Limited 

11. Azure Power Fifty Eight Private Limited 

A. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year (Nil)



Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 
(Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures) 

SI. 
No. 

Name of 
Associates/Joint 

Ventures 

Waaree Power Private 
1. Limited 

Latest 
Audited 
Balance 

Sheet Date 

2020-21 

Shares of Associate / Joint 
Venture held by the 

Company 
at the ,ear end 

No. of Shares 

2,600 

Amount of 
Investment 

in Associate / 
Joint Venture 

26,000 

Extent of 
Holding 

% 

26 

Description 
of Significant 

Influence 

There is a 
significant 
influence 

due to 
percentage 

(%) of 
Shareholding 

Reason why 
Associate/ 

Joint Venture 
is not 

consolidated 

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Waaree Power Private Limited 
Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

�::U 
Chairman 
DIN: 07384044 

Date: 

Place: 

Ranjit Gupta 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00100872 

Date: 

Place: 
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Net worth 
Attributable 

to Shareholding 
as per 

latest Audited 
Balance 

Sheet Date 

To the extent of 
shares held 

Profit / (Loss) for 
the year 

Considered 
In 

Consolidation 

(20,532) 

Not Considered 
1n 

Consolidation 

08.09.2021 08.09.2021

Chevy Chase, MD USA New Delhi
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ABHISHEK GUPTA & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Office : 16/10, 1st Floor, 

New Rohtak Road, Near MTNL Office, 

Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

Mobile : +91 99 1085 9837 {India) 

Tel. Fax : 011 42430303 

E-mail : abhishek@agassociate.in

pcsabhishekgupta@gmail.com 

Web: www.agassociate.in 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2021 

To, 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014} 

The Members, 
Azure Power India Private Limited, 
5th Floor, Southern Park, D-11, Saket Place, 
Saket, New Delhi-110017 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of the applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Azure 
Power India Private Limited (CIN: U40106DL2008PTC174774) (herein after 
referred to as 'the Company'), having its Registered Office at 5th Floor,. Southern 
Park, D-11, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi-110017. Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2021 ('Audit Period') generally complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board­
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

A. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 st
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

Annexure-III



Abhishek Gupta & Associates 
Company Secretaries Continuation Sheet No. 2 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 and Bye-laws framed
thereunder(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of its applicability.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non­
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);



Abhishek Gupta & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

fL __ 

Continuation Sheet No. 3 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and
Education Fund) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India SEBI (Prohibition of
Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period); and

1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(vi) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs,
as identified by the management, that is to say:

Legislation Name: 

a) Payment of Wages Act, 1936
b) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
c) The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
d) Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948
e) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
f) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
g) Employee Taxation as per Income Tax Act, 1961
h) Employee Group Insurance Scheme and Maternity Benefits.
i) Shops and Establishment Act & Rules thereunder.
j) The Contract Labour (Abolition & Repeal) Act & and Rules thereunder
k) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
1) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
m) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
n) The Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000
o) Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989
p) Factories Act, 1948

B. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute· of Company Secretaries of India.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);



Abhishek Gupta & Associates 
Company Secretaries Continuation Sheet No. 4 

C. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject
to filing of certain e-forms with additional fees.

D. I further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

c) There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

d) As per the information and explanations as provided to me, by the
officers and management of the Company during Secretarial Audit, the
Labour Laws & other General Laws which may be specifically applicable
to the Company including The Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 were
applicable on the Company during the Financial Year. I have relied on
the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and
mechanism framed by the Company for compliances of the said laws.

e) As per the minutes of the meetings of the Board and Committees of the
Board signed by the Chairman, all the decisions of the Board were
adequately passed and the dissenting members' views, if any, was captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

f) As per the records, the Company filed all the forms, returns, documents and
resolutions as were required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and
other authorities and all the formalities relating to the same is in compliance
with the Act.



Abhishek Gupta & Associates 
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E. I further report that during the audit period the company has:

a. Passed a special resolution for ratification of appointment of Ms. Supriya
Prakash Sen as director of the company.

b. Passed a special resolution to approve the issuance of unlisted, redeemable,
transferable and interest bearing non-convertible debentures to Asian
Development Bank ("ADB") on a private placement basis.

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 26-08-2021 

NOTE: THIS REPORT IS TO BE READ WITH 'ANNEXURE I' IS ATTACHED HEREWITH AND FORMS AN 

INTEGRAL PART OF THIS REPORT. 



Abhishek Gupta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Annexure - I 

The Members, 
Azure Power India Private Limited, 
5th Floor, Southern Park, D-11, Saket Place, 

Saket, New Delhi-110017. 

Continuation Sheet No. 6 

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2021 of even 
date is to be read along with this letter: 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
op1n10n.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the prov1s10ns of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the respop.sibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 26-08-2021 
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Annexure-IV 

FORMAT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT 

Sr. No. Particulars Remarks 

1 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, 
including overview of projects or programs proposed 
to be undertaken and a reference to the web- link to 
the CSR policy and project or programs. 

Our Corporate Social Responsibility program is based on shared values, responsible business and
exposure to voluntary social activities. The government guideline of utilizing minimum 2% of the 
company’s average net profit during the immediately three preceding financial year is only a 
mandate; CSR is much beyond that. Any CSR project that we take up, we ensure that it is able to
make a social and an economic impact. It also has an effect on the gender equality, caste and yield in
the rural area where we intervene. A holistic approach is what helps us attain sustainability in any 
project. We truly believe that it’s not just the funds, but true intentions and actions that go a long 
way 

2 
The Composition of the CSR 
Committee. 

1. Mr. Mangalath Unnikrishnan (Chairman)
2. Ms. Supriya Prakash Sen (Member)
3. Mr. Deepak Malhotra (Member)

3 
Average net profit (loss) of the Company for last three 
financial years (INR in Lakhs). 

INR 6,671.67/- 

4 
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the 
amount as in item 3 above) (INR in Lakhs). 

INR 133.43/- 

5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year
(INR in Lakhs)

b) Amount unspent (INR in Lakhs), if any;
c) Manner in which the amount spent during the

financial year is detailed below

INR 180.43/- 

Nil 
Undertaken Skill development/Livelihood enhancement, Extension of Skill Development classes, 
Distribution of Sewing machine, installation of RO System, Distribution of Woolen Blanket, 
Construction of tube-wells, Rooftop Hybrid Solar Power, Distribution of Covid related 
Masks/PPE’s Kit, Dry Ration/Cooked food, 25kl RWR Water tank, Construction of water tank 
foundation, Installation of street lights, Piggery activities etc. at various locations in the state of 
Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Gujarat, Haryana, Karnataka, Punjab, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh and PAN 
India, Obtaining consultancy services for implementation of CSR activities and expenditures 
thereto. 
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

SI. 
No 

CSR Project or Activity 
Identified 

Sector 
in which the 

Project 
is covered 

Projects or programs 
(1) Local area or other
(2) Specify the State and
district where projects or
programs was Undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

Amount spent on 
the projects 

or programs Sub-
heads: 

(1) Direct
expenditure on 

projects 
or programs; 

(2) Overheads
(INR in Lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period 
(INR in 
Lakhs) 

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency 

1. 

Skill Development/ Livelihood 
Enhancement; 

Distribution of Sewing machine 

Distribution of Beautician Kit 

Extension of Skill Development 
classes  

Livelihood and 
Skill 

Development 

Udalguri, Sabaherua, Nagaon, 
(Assam); Vanwala, Tahiwala, 
Badhurkhera (Punjab); Pachulla, 
Chahitara, Karharkalan, Dakore, 
Bibiyapur, (Uttar Pradesh): Nure 
Ki Bhurj, Khakuri, Shivnath 
Nagar, Kesarpura, Ravra, 
Dedasari, Bhanderi Jodhpur, 
Bikaner (Rajasthan): 
Vemulapadu, Tutralpalli, 
Nagurur, Veligallu (Andhra 
Pradesh) 

Murgi Ladai (Assam) 

80.94/- 80.94/- 80.94/- Direct 

2. RO Installation Water 

Gollarahatti, Jadekunte,  
Piddikote, Halagaladdi,  
Harthikote (Karnataka);  
Tahliwala (Punjab); Noore ki 
Burj, Kesharpura, Shivnath 
Nagar, Bagdatnagar (Rajasthan); 
Khadol, Rojav (Gujarat); Dakore, 
Mahoba, Banda (Uttar Pradesh); 
Vemlapadu, Nagurur, 
Thutralapalli (Andhra Pradesh) 

22.87/- 22.87/- 22.87/- Direct 

3. Covid related: Masks/PPE’s Kit Others PAN India 21.63/- 21.63/- 21.63/- Direct 

4. Dry Ration/Cooked food Others PAN India 45.15/- 45.15/- 45.15/- Direct 
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5. Tube well Construction Water Pundalasar, (Rajasthan) 3.00/- 3.00/- 3.00/- Direct 

6. 
CSR consultancy, Piggery 
Activities & Others 

Others PAN India 6.84/- 6.84/- 6.84/- Direct 

7. 

Distribution of Sanitizer/PPE's 
Kit/Hand Gloves/ Surgical 
Mask* 

Others PAN India 7.03/- 7.03/- 7.03/- Direct 

TOTAL 187.46/- 187.46/- 187.46/- 

*The expenditure made on behalf of Azure Clean Energy Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company) subject to re-imbursement of cost incurred.

Mangalath Unnikrishnan Ranjit Gupta 

Chairman (CSR Committee) Managing Director 

DIN: 01460245 DIN: 00100872 

Date: Date: 

Place: Place: 

08.09.202108.09.2021
New DelhiMumbai
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Annexure-V 
FORM- NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto. 

Nature of Transaction 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

(INR in lakhs, unless 
otherwise stated) 

Board /Committee 
Resolution Date 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES RENDERED 

Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited 285 - 

Azure Power Thirty Three Private Limited 602 - 

Azure Power Forty Four Private Limited 36 - 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES RENDERED 

Azure Power Maple Private Limited  3,870 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited  2,615 12/08/2020 
Azure Power Forty One Private Limited  1,856 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Pluto Private Limited  212 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Forty Private Limited  144 12/08/2020 
Azure Power Thirty Seven Private Limited  142 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Thirty Three Private Limited  122 12/08/2020 
Azure Power Infrastructure Private Ltd  71 12/08/2020 

Azure Sunrise Private Limited  71 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited  71 12/08/2020 
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited  61 12/08/2020 

Azure Photovoltaic Private Limited  56 12/08/2020 
Azure Power (Raj.) Private Limited  56 12/08/2020 

Azure Green Tech Private Limited  56 12/08/2020 

Azure Clean Energy Private Limited  56 12/08/2020 
Azure Urja Private Limited  48 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Earth Private Limited  47 12/08/2020 
Azure Sunshine Private Limited  28 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Thirty Six Private Limited  24 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Venus Private Limited  19 12/08/2020 
Azure Power (Karnataka) Private Limited  14 12/08/2020 

Azure Power (Haryana) Private Limited  14 12/08/2020 

Azure Surya Private Limited  14 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Eris Private Limited  14 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Makemake Private Limited  13 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Mars Private Limited  7 12/08/2020 
Azure Power (Punjab) Private Limited  3 12/08/2020 

Azure Power Uranus Private Limited  3 12/08/2020 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 
Mr. Ranjit Gupta (Chief Executive Officer and Director)  6,949 18/07/2019 

Mr. Murali Subramanian (President)  6,694 18/07/2019 
Mr. Pawan Kumar Agrawal (Chief Financial Officer)  360 29/01/2019 

Mr. Kapil Sharma (Company Secretary)  42 - 

CORPORATE GUARANTEES GIVEN 
Azure Sun Energy Private Limited 1,437 

Azure Sunlight Private Limited 571 30/01/2016 
Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited 20,332 20/01/2017 

Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited 4,498 17/07/2017 

Azure Power Forty Private Limited 36,099 23/12/2019 



Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited 195,300 13/06/2019 

Azure Power Rooftop (Genco) Private Limited 6,571 03/07/2018 

Azure Power Rooftop One Private Limited 10,666 03/07/2018 

Azure Power Rooftop Three Private Limited 2,517 03/07/2018 

Azure Power Rooftop Five Private Limited 1,445 03/07/2018 

Azure Power Maple Private Limited 99,900 -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

AZURE POWER INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

� ,. 

BarneyShep ard Rush Ranjit Gupta 

Chairman Managing Director 

DIN: 07384044 DIN: 00100872 

Date: Date: 

Place: Place: 

42 

08.09.202108.09.2021

New DelhiChevy Chase, MD USA
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An•re Power India Privnte Limited
Standa)one Shcet as át Mnreh 31, 202t

Non.torrent assets
Propetty, 'fid

assets
Capital work.in•progrcss
Íhtangibie 'ssets
Finsncial sssets

investments

• Tmdc receiS'5bIes
- Loang
-Other finaneiai 2S5ets
Deferted gsets (net)
Inceme tax assets (net)
Other non currcnt assets

Tctai non-turrcnt

Currcnt asscts
Financial assets
Investments

- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivnlents

Other bank baiances

• toans
- Other current financia! assets
Otite.- eurer,t assets

Total currcnt asscts

Total asseB

and babiliric$
Equity
Equity sha.•c 230itai

Other squity
Total equity

Non-currcnt liabiiitics
Financial }iabmtics
- Lmse

- Other finarĽial iiabiEties

Dcĺerrcd tax iiabilities (net)
Total Mn-currcnt liabilitics

-Currcnt üabititics
Financial liabilities
- i.zase iiabilitics

Borzowiogs

Trade payab!es

Nôteg

3
32
3
4
5

5.2
5.3
5.4
16
6

5.1
8.1

8.3

8.5
9

12.
12.2
13.1
16

32
14.)

Totai outsta!'.dirľg dt:cs oĺ micro en:eřpriscs and enterp:ises 14.2
Total outsranding ducs creditors other ti'.an micro entc:prises and srnall

enterpri5ä
cu:rent ÍinarĽiaI tiabijit;.es 14.3

Provisicns 13.2
Odtct curren: iiabňities 15
Total currcnt liabilitics

Total iiabilities

Marth.31.ž021

3,325

250

301.065
33354
79,637
37.323

5.593
2,559
1.939

630-199

5,067
12,537
17.033
5.596

14.075
1,022
3.343

59.118

455
3,16.435
346.890

3,129
233.255

14.025
1,160

252.169

15.327

591

ős.?S2

1.733

342.487

Total equity and liabilities

ScrĽrĽar,' oĺs;gnificanl pciicics

Tbe accompanying notes arc an integn) part of the financial stattments,

per out reporž even date

For MSKA & Associatcs
Chartered Accountants
Finn regisz tionnu 05047W

Man hP Bathija BSSO
Partncľ
Membe:sitip No: 5706
řiĽe•. Curugram

Co

For and on behaiĺoĺ board 0$ direetcľä oť
Azu e Power India Prívate Limited

Ranji pta
Ditecł
DIN: 872

í)atc: 26/08/2021

n Asrawa)
Chicĺ naneiaiOfiiceľ
Place Delhi

As at
Marrh 31.*020

í6t.5i\
6634

325,04
33383

9.385

2.993
3,46C

572.774

15.586
24,929

537
5.390

'4.145

37C.5ÄO

6.693
152,780

2.005
i.632

73

200.075

Barney Sheppaľd
Chainnaa
DIN:

VSA

Cgcnpany
Phec u' New Delhi

Date 08/2021



Azure Power India Private Limited
Standalone Statement or Profit and Loss for the yet ended March 31, 2021
(NR amount in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Revcnuc
Revenue from operations
Other income
Finanee income
Total revenue

Expenses
Construction, sub contracting and other site expenses

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Finance cost
Other expenses

Total expenscs

Loss beforc tax

Tax cxpcnsc:
Current tax expense

Income tax adjustment pertaining to earlier years

Deferred tax (credit)/ charge
Total tax benefit

Loss after tax

Other comprehensivc income
Items that will reclassificd to profit or loss
Net movemelt on cash flow hedge reserve
Income tu effect on cash flow hedgc reserve
Items that will not bc reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined bencfit plans

Income tax effect on defined benefit plans

Total other comprehensivc loss

Total comprehensive (expense)/ income

Notes

18.1
18.2

19
20
21
22
23

16
16
16

Earnings per equity share; (Nominal value of share : INR 10

(March 31, 2020 : INR 10))
(l) Basic eamings per share (NR)
(2) Diluted eamings per share (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies

24
24

2.2

For the year ended
2021

31,369
2,043

I I .879
51.291

758
11,744
10,798
28,913
24.977
83.190

(31.899)

(7.969)
(7969)

(23.930)

(905)
316

(35)
12

(612)

4 54

(525.77)
(525.77)

For the year ended
March 31 2020

114,140

74,051
10,365
10,769
27$61
10,889

133.147

(9343)

(647)
(7.2131
(7.86m

(762)
266

(79)
27

(548)

221

(42.78)
(42.78)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our rqort of even date

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration nu : 105041%/

v€seo
M ishPBathj
Partner
Membership No: 216706 CU
Place: Gurugram

Date. 26108/2021

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Azurc Power India Private Limited

Di to
D • 100872
Place : New Delhi
Date: 26/08/2021

r Agrawat
lit i ial Officer

Place: w Delhi
Date: 2 021

Barney Sheppard Rush
Chairman
DIN: 07384044
Place:
Date 2 nd2i

Shar
Company Secreta N*OIA PR/
Place : New Del

26/08/20 0
a. New oe\hi
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Ature Power India Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
tlNRamount in Jakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Change liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Opening balance as at Cash now (net) Change in

•curcnt borrowin
Cunent borrowin

ease liabilitie
otal liabilities from financinz activitics

Particulars Opening
balance as at

20
Non-current borrowi 54 515

urrcnt borrowin 41 080
ease liabiliti
otal liabilities from nnancin activities 195.595

April 01, 2020

181.450
34 685
6.891

223 032

Recognition on

due to

7 206
7 206

53 348
21.693

(680
74 361

Cash now (net)

24 748
(6.49V

(998'
17.252

foreign
exchan e rate

2031)

2031

Change in

foreign

3 136

3.136

Other
changes•

39.679
41 051)

2,715
4,087)

Other
changes'

949
103
689
157)

Closing balance
as March 31,

2021
272 446

5.327
502

291,275

Closing balance
ag at March 31,

31 50
34 5
5.397

223 032

•Including adjustments of ancillary borrowing cost

Notes:
The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) *Statement of Cash Flows"

referred to Section 133 Act 2013.
2 The accompanying notes ate an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our rcport of even date

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 105047W

ssso

Man h P Bathija
Partner
Membership No: 216706 co
Place: Gurugram
Date: 26/08/2021 -k

Fot and on behalf Of the board of directo.•s of

A Power India Private Limited

Rang Barney Sheppard Rush
Direc Chairman
DIN: 1 872 DIN: 07384044

Place : New Delhi MD/ IBP)
Date: 26/08/2021 Date: 26/08/2±

a
Fina

Place : Nei
Date: 2

ar Agrawal
tal OtTtcer
Delhi
021

pil S harm•
Cxvany Secretary
Place : New Delhi
Date: 26/08/202

a. New Delhi











































Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

During the current year, the Social Security Code, 2020 ("SS Code") has been passed by the Parliament of India and
also received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The SS Code has been enacted to amend and consolidate the laws
relating to social security with the goal of extending social security to all employees and workers. However, due to second
wave of COVID-19 pandemic, implementation of these labour reforms has been delayed and now are expected to be
implemented in fiscal 2022.The Company is awaiting the issuance of final guidelines by Central and State governments on
the new SS code and is under process of evaluating related impacts of these codes.
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Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(INR amount in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
arch 31 2021 March 31 2020

8.4 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Carried at amortised cost
Loans to subsidiaries/ fellow subsidiaries (refer note 26)•
Advances to related parties (refer note 26)

Total

6,763 7,922
7,312 8,436

*Theloanshavebeengrantedtosubsidiaries/fellowsubsidiarieswhicharerepayableinoneyear.l'heseloanscarryinterestraterangingfrom 10.00% t2%p.Q.
8.5 Other current financial assets
Caried at amortised cost
Interest accrued on term deposits
Interest accrued on loans and advances to subsidiaries/ fellow subsidiaries (refer note 26)
Viability gap finding receivable
Carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Derivative assets
Total

9. Other current assets
(Considered good unless other-wise stated)
Balance with statutory authorities
Advance to vendors

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
(Less): Allowance for bad and doubtful advances

Prepaid assets
Prepaid performance guarantee deposit
Contract assets
Prepaid asset - land use rights
Other advances
Total

207
428

378
12

2,429

95
270

(270)

1,225

14

37

450
128

3,132

1,147
270

(270)
1,147

1,000

14

52

New Delh i





































Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to standalone nnancinl statements for the year ended March St, 2021
(INR amount in iakhs. unles otherwise stated)

Interest accrued on logns e) and advnnces•
Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited
Azure Power Forty One Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited
Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited
Azure Power Maple Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Six Private Limited
Azure Solar Solutions Private Limited
Azure Power nirty Three Private Limited
Azure Power (Rajasthan) Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited
Azure Power Saturn Private Limited
Azure Power Earth Private Limited
Azure Power Rooftop Private Limited
Azure Solar Private Limited
Azure Power Mercury Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Nine Private Limited
Azure Power Infrastructure Private Limited
Azure Power Uranus Private Limited
Azure Power Ihrty Six Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Four Private Limited

Marctl

*Includes interest accrued on trade receivables from related parties.

2.503
814
663
264
359
215
206

2.112
112

93
90

898
15
13
81

3

93
629

d) Interest due on borm"ings
Azure Sunrise Private Limited
Azure Power (Haryana) Private Limited
Azure Power Pluto Private Limited
Azure Clean Energy Private Limited
Anrre Uria Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited
Azure Power nirty Seven Private Limited
Azure Power Makemake Private Limited
Azure Sunshine Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Four Ptivate Limited
Azure Power Mars Private Limited
Azure Power (Kamataka) Private Limited
Azure Suo•a Private Limited
Azure Power (Punjab) Private Limited
Azure Renewable Energy Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Six Private Limited
Azure Power Infrastructure Private Limited
Azure Power (Raj.) Private Limited
Azure Photovoltaic Private Limited
Azure Green Tech Private Limited
Azure Powa Eris Private Limited

e) Loan to subsidiary/fenow subsidiary
Azure Powa (Punjab) Private Limited
Azure Power (Rajasthan) Private Limited
Azure Solar Solutions Private Limited
Azure Power Earth Private Limited
Azure Power Jupiter Private Limited
Azure Powa Mercury Private Limited
Azure Power Saturn Private Limited
Azure Powa Thirty Three Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Nine Private Limited
Azure Power Forty One Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Four Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Six Private Limited
Azure Power Maple Private Limited
Azure Solar Private Limited

O Loan from subsidiary
Azure Power (Punjab) Private Limited
Azure Power (Haryana) Private Limited
Azure Urja Private Limited
Azure Surya Private Limited
Azure Powa (Karnataka) Private Limited
Azure Photovoltaic Private Limited
Azure Power Infrastructure Private Limited
Azure Power (Raj.) Private Limited
Azure Green Tech Private Limited
Azure Renewable Energy Private Limited
Azure Clean Energy Private Limited
Azure Sunrise Private Lirnited
Azure Sunshine Private Limited
Azure Power Eris Private Limited
Azure Power Mars Private Limited
Azure Power Pluto Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Seven Private Limited
Azure Power Makemake Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Four Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Six Private Limited
Azure Tower Forty Four Private Limited

March 202!
235

74
60
30
27
21
17

10
9

.8
7
7
7
6
4

March 32.2021

March 31

1,150
2,210

136
2,766

40
13

344
3,470
1,215

34
29,560
28,609

16,326
300

2021
806

8,900
3,266

878
868

46
3.571

28,182
1.168

944
7.153
2.013
1,670
2.550

500
114

March 31.*030
106

323

83

77
58
15

2

29

5

31.2020
5,213

3

4
3

8

2

9
3

5
4
2

March 31. 2020

1,150
2,210

136
2,765

40
13

344
3,470

676
34

1,572

50
2,397
2,093

March 31 2020
623

4.120
3.404
1,049

910
927

2,512
264

3.475
46

3,540
25.236

1.200
240

1,122
5,039
2.514

co





CO

CT,

1
二

9St•€0g0
'
1

6
•01

9
01

卜
0

卜

L9ÜZOt.0
OZ
•If

0

0

S19

【

Z8S'LiZ

(9ZtI)

€0

1一

(990'91)

t08

【
6

VOIZ99

'Z

Z99%Z

IZOZ

q)

ZLS80
($610(S90'91)

Il
ZI

ZL

6

6

Z

6
'9Z
IZOZ
;

SL6POP'

一二

「0'9
8q9

082€Sf'6990
•:

086tF026t't

'02

0g2
;

L90'S卜
90K

€966€OS
(60D

6
卜
一8

6t'l06028
S

88H88HOZO
;

09S'St

661

ELV9(0'91)
6
6

6一
6

S46

「I

8
9

(口
)

8
一0'

8i0'€8

IZOZ

;

08

OZ

1:
01

04

S

:
一A
OS

putt

0一

0

,Pd

PCI

,
04

V





































Pater India
Notes '0 Stond'lone 

amount in

Statements the yet 2021

Events after teportire
Company in prepot:gor, 

*SSt into aeeount She smpeet oen i.s 
issued y The MiniBtty Energy ("MNRE') with S die:ti0h 
•in tndia have been granted •must Status end '.his status DC "must tun' 

genetation is designated as s:wie: in India, Based on 
en •eeounts tcceivobles due to COVTD.t9. Howeve.•. the 

assoeiåted with 'nd Compny wig continue 

'he teonemie "Athok tad be!ieves
out 'h: In 20

D?SCCMs geitentethst sit
The power 9tants have

'he Cornpony

is continuing giv:n the
any changes to :conomie

Subsequent the y:ar Sad Company has :nteted into a binding off certain

Subsequen! to the year end, the Supterne Court ot India while disposing petition filed under public interest aimed it the en•.ertj'.ion of
species Si:ås. the Great Indian Bustard and the Lesse,• Florieon, which ate protected species in the stares of pajuthan and Guiarat vide /.ts order

deted April 19, 202i instructed states to install diverte:s, as well as the conversion or lines to 'Jhdetpo•and iinet, subject
evaluation ot sueh cowersion by committee set by the Supreme Coutt in this regard. F'J'thet, the Conversion or overhead into

underground power lines. wherever considered feasibie by such committee. i' to 'Ske place within period of one year. The order mentioned the pass
through of expenses ineurted by the Compeny to the ultimate consumer. aubje: approval o: the Competent Reguls•.oty Authority
Management has assessed that any zests inured to comply With the said art likely be Wholly by the
eompany under provi5iers Chang: in law and/or majeute Of their espcetive PPA'. Given •.he preliminary nature order 3rd the ongoing
assessment by the 

Company has 

to 
eontained in 

45. Impairment

tht Company has not any amount tö: this at I. 202 i

.-:ceivcd 3.-.enmous whisoebiov.'tr :epctt3, which Company•s er•.ain
its .Avdit Com.mit•.ee. ard wi:h {h: an

allegations contained in the whistlebiower suE%tantive. The did the
whistleh!cwer repot1S. Nevertheless. the Company hos determin:d that or its p.•ceezes is requited to
with its intemai poiieies and procedures.

20 

Futthe.•. per the 
Holding Company. 

Out

•.he 

•.vi%S 

Sal: to

the Rooftop Sal: ia re.SPCCt 
entities of Restricted Group (whit": 

holding pi.•.g

into

5.350 .Tåüion.

43.2 S•iWs capacity •.vhi:h opctatcd th:ough e:'.ain ;uösidiaties
i%ued Senior NotesjGtetn Bends during years) the

the tamaining S:
to 16 YW with Delhi -tal

: tans(ered '.0 Radianc:on the d:jtc. and 
pcs: zones Aso 

30atd 49% equity osvne:ship be 
Maxi-. 31.2024.

the the ;ai: Roonop SubsidiaHes does not OCt'J% 

with an 10.5% p•.r annum equity :cturn.

subsidiary on going 
%uytt

on

:hz: :hz• d:cisicn •.0 Seil Eh: 250itcp
•.h: Co,-ngan•,• aa

has •used agrecmcnis of 
2N?. 467 'he 

•n •hte. and the 

Holding Company 

basis 2: 

pevis:on 

5:46 will tansie:ad on

the 2%'ity vaiae assctS

Subsequent

the

in

Izk>.s investment these tubidia:i'.;, •.0 
'.asificd •s Cer:n! and its fait value. the C:mpany hes 

•.vil.hia 12

E..%S
ncivaö!es forairg o' •Sove

Reclassificatim
For orthesc statements. figures Of previous have been •.vhe.•e acassa:y.

As c•en

For MSKA & Associates and on W:

ower Iodia Private LirNted
'"35047%?

? 3at•nija

GUR DIN: oo n
2hc:: Place : wco'mg. 230±22 pate:

: Ncvv Delhi

R'.'ih

. New Oglhi

Nqeoeth/ I
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Azure Power India Private Limited
Dbl•nee Sheet at M•reh 3 % 2021

•motmt iB unless Othe•wße Slated)

A"ets
Non-current assets
Pmpetty. pbnt and equiptnent
Copital
tnnngible assets
Ri$t •or-use assets

Financial assets

Loam
- Other financial assets

tax assets
income tax assets (r*t)
Other non curent assets
Total non-current asset'

Current assets
Financial assets
- Trade receiv•bles
- Cash and cash equivalents

• Other bank batanees

- Other current roaneial assets
Other cureat assets
Assets classified as held for sak

Total current assets

Total assets

and FabiUtie:
EquiO'
Equity share capital
outer equity
Equity attributable to equity holders af the parent
Non-controUiag interest
Total equity

Noo.current liabilities
Financial liabilities
• Lease liabiities

- Qber fi.naocial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Other aon eurent liabilities
Total ngn•currcat liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabflitics
• Lease liabilities

- Borrowings
Trade pay•Ues

Total outstandingdues or l.nicro cnteaptises and 51naII enteaprises
Total outstaadiag dues or creditors other than micro enterprises
and smal entaprises

• Q'er curred financial liabilities
Curcnl tax (mt)
Provisicas
Oder cutent liabilities
Liablities dicctly associated assets classified as held for sale
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabUities

Summary of siÄficant accounting policies

aecanpanying notes ate an integal put of the financial statements.

AS report of wen date

For MS}" & Associates
Ctunetcd A eccununts
Fino registratjonounber: JOS-OOW

P•nrgt
GURlGkAM -ANo: 214106

Ougumtn

atNotes

3
3
4
36
5

5.1
5.2
$3

6
7

8
8.1
8.2
83
8.4
8.5
9

48

10

12
36

12.1
12.2
13.1

14

15
36

15.1

15.2
15.2

15.3

13.2
16
48

2.2

March Jl. 2021

906.630
102,641

250
30.814

47.803
32.148

3.457
20 65!

1.149.948

4031
67.246
41.348

9,496
O.644

7,282
6.943

191 .190

4173

455
189.571
190.026

1.484
191 SIO

29.742
841.030

13.531
8.580

24.608
92 7636

2 OCS

39.432

I .096

9,016

120.302
4.016

2.395

4 73

March J', 2020

327,242
31,936

S4J
36.21'

$03
60.064
21,311
5,476

PJ59

46.367
69,870

4,101
7,583
9/424

(57305

455
225.6%
226.081

l.aso

33689

2DOS
7.569

22374
840S0

2.560
3,903

9,302

72.78S

2.599

98 ms

938.69S

For and •a båatfot tho boud of directoo ot
urc Pmtcr India Private Vimitcd

Gupt Sieppara Rush
Dir 10

DIN:

Oate

outta
: Nev

: New A. New Delhi

6.



Azure Power India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement ot Profit and Loss for the ycar ended March 2021
(INR amount in lakhs. unless othenvise stated)

Notes

Revenue
Revenue from opetations 18
Interest income 19
Oti*t non-operating income

Total Revenue

Expenses
Construction. sub contracting and other site expenses 21
Employee bcnefits expense 22
Depreciation and amortization expense 23
Impaianent loss 48
Finance cost 24
Other expenses 25
Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax (expense)/ benefit:
Current tax 17
Income tax adiusbnent pertaining to earlier year 17
Defcned tax (credit) 17
Total tax benefit

Loss after tax

Other comprehcnsive incomc
Items that will bc reclassified to profit or loss
Effective portion of cash flow hedge
Incometax effect on cash flow hedge reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined bcncfit plans
Income tax effect on dcfirrd benefit plans

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interest

Earnings/(loss) per equity share: I Nominal value Of share : INR 10 (March 31, 2020

: INR
(l) Basic earnings per share (INR)
(2) Diluted eamiags pc: share (INR)

Summary cf significant accounting policies

26

2.2

For the year ended
March 31 2021

150.021
4.945
2.504

157 570

612
19.1SJ
57.305

7,565
96.582
!8.408

199,625

(42.055

1.902
(25)

(8.055)
(6.17%)

(35.811)

(1.446)
462

(9)

(35)
12

(1.016)

36 893

(36,497)
(396)

088.26)
(783.26)

For the year ended
March 31 2020

130.242
5.399
1.456

137.097

39
9,564

so.906

91.115
24.168

115.792

(38.6951

1.410
(720)

(14.551)
(13.861)

(24.834)

(762)
244

(79)
28

53

(24.684)
(714)

(635.06)
(635.06)

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration numb : IOS047W

BSso
Manish P Bathija
Partner G AM A

Membership No: 216706
coPlace: Gutugtam

Date: 26/08/2021

For and on behalf of the board Of directors of
Azure Power India Private Limited

Ra lit up
Di to
DI 0872
Place. ew Delhi
Date: 26,'0S/2021

ic ORicer
Delhi

e:

Barney Sheppard RUh
Chaiman
DIN: 07384044
Place : Chevg
Date: 26/OSt209J

Sha
any Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: 26/08/2021

a- New Delhi
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Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Azure Power India Private Limited ("the Group" or "Parent Group") is a private Group domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is subsidiary of Azure Power Global Limited
("APGL" or "Ultimate holding Company"). These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(referred to collectively as the 'Group') and the Group's interest in associates. The registered office of the Group is located at 5th
Floor, Southem Park, D-II, Saket Place, Saket, New Delhi 1 10017.

The Group's primary business includes generation of solar energy and developing and managing infrastructure for solar power.
The group pledges its plant to obtain long term loans. As per the legal view obtained by the Group, the company and it's
subsidiaries are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003. The projects of Group, which have commenced operations before March
31, 2017, are eligible for section 80-1A benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 , read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Central Electricity Regulatory
Corporation (CERC guidelines)

The Ind AS consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost
convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount;

• Derivative financial instruments
• Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements
• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting

policy regarding financial instruments)

Principles of Consolidation

In the preparation of Consolidated financial statements, investments in subsidiaries have been accounted in accordance for
accordance with the accounting principles as defined in the Ind AS 110 "Consolidated financial statements" notified under
section 133 of Companies Act 2013 , read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Consolidated
Financial statements are prepared on the following basis:

i. Subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of the like items of
assets, liabilities, income, and expenses after eliminating all significant intra-group balances and intra-group transaction
and also unrealized profits and losses.

ii. The Consolidated Financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions other events
in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate
financial statements. The financial statements of the subsidiary are adjusted for the accounting principles followed by
the Group.

iii. The difference between the cost to the Group of its investments in the subsidiaries and its proportionate share in the
equity of the investee Company at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial
statements as Goodwill or Capital reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill is tested for impairment by management on
annual basis.

Non-controlling interest in the net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the
income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the Company. Their share of net assets is
identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance sheet separately. Where accumulated losses attributable to the
minorities are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation on the minorities, the same is
accounted for by the holding Company.

statements ofthe entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up same reporting date as
o pany i.e., year ended March 31, 2021.
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Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b) Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to
prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

c) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

d) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible
asset under development.

e) If a Group has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

f) Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name
of Group, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details
of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

a) Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual
currency specified under the head 'additional information' in the notes forming part of consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments are extensive, and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

ii. Other amendments

A number of minor amendments to existing standards also became effective on April 01 , 2020 and have been adopted
by the Group. The adoption of these new accounting pronouncements did not have a significant impact on the
accounting policies, method of computation or presentation applied by the Group.

iii. Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of the new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not
yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group's consolidated financial statements and does not expect to have
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Group has not early adopted any amendment,
standard or interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective.

iv, During the current year, the Social Security Code, 2020 ("SS Code") has been passed by the Parliament of India and
also received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The SS Code has been enacted to amend and consolidate the laws
relating to social security with the goal of extending social security to all employees and workers. However, due to second
wave of COVID-19 pandemic, implementation of these labour reforms has been delayed and now are expected to be
implemented in fiscal 2022.The Group is awaiting the issuance of final guidelines by Central and State governments on the
new S and is under process of evaluating related impacts of these codes.

a. New Delhi
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Balance Sheet:
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in present value the defined benefit obligation for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are as follows:
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Anrre Power India Private Limited
Notes to consolidated nnnneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Amount for the current and previous four periods are as follows:•

Particular•s March 31 2021 March 31 2020 
Defined benefit obli tion 493 309
Plan assets
S lust deficit 493 309
Ex •ence ad•ustmentson Ian liabilities
Ex •ence ad'ustments on Ian assets

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 3 1 , 2021 is as shown below:

Sensitivi ana is
Assumption

Defined benefit obli

Sensitivi ana •sis
Assumption

Defined benefit obli

March 31 2021 March 31 2021
Discount rate

I % increase I % decrease
tion increased' decreased 44 52

March 31 2021 March 31 2021
Sala Escalation Rate

I % increase I % decrease
tion increased/ decreased b 52 45

March 31 2019 March 31 2018 March 31 2017
339 238 114

339 238 114

March 31 2020 March 31 2020
Discount rate

I % increase I % decrease
23 24

March 31 2020 March 31 2020
Sala Escalation Rate

I % increase I % decrease
24 21

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in
key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following paymalts are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particular March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Within the next 12 months next annual rtin 23
Between 2 and 5 ears 138
Between 5 and 10 ears 238

48
144
212

a. New Delhi



















Azure Power India Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

46. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(i) Revenue from Viability Gap Funding (VGF)
The Group records the proceeds received from Viability Gap Funding (VGF) on fulfilment of the underlying conditions as deferred revenue.
Such deferred VGF revenue is recognized as sale of power in proportion to the actual sale of solar energy kilowatts during the period to the total
estimated sale of solar energy kilowatts during the tenure of the applicable power purchase agreement pursuant to the revenue recognition

(ii) Classification of leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires
significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if
there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with

B. Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumotions when thev occur.

(i) Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at
which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to
the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28.

(ii) Taxes
Projects of Group qualify for deduction from taxable income because its profits are attributable to undertakings engaged in development of solar
power projects under section 80-1A of the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. This holiday is available for a period of ten consecutive years out of

years beginning from the year in which the Group generates power ("Tax Holiday Period"), however, the exemption is only available to
the projects completed on or before March 31, 2017. The Group anticipates that it will claim the aforesaid deduction in the last ten years out of
fifteen years beginning with the year in which the Group generates power and when it has taxable income. Accordingly, its current operations
are taxable at the normally applicable tax rates. Due to the Tax Holiday Period, a substantial portion of the temporary differences between the
book an tax basis of the Group's assets and liabilities do not have any tax consequences as they are expected to reverse within the Tax Holidaypen i o
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(INR amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation
The cust of thc defined benefit obligation and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity Of the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds, and extrapolated maturity
corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for
the specific countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on cxpected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 39

(iv) Provision for decommissioning
The Group has recognized provisions for the future decommissioning of solar power plants set up on leased land at the end of the lease term or
expiry of power purchase agreement. In determining the fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount
rates, the expected cost to dismantle and remove the plant from the leased land and the expected timing of those costs. The carrying amount of
the provision as at March 31, 2021 is INR 8, 109 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 7,407 lakhs). The Group estimates that the costs would be settled
upon the expiration of the lease and calculates the provision using the discounted cash flow method based on the following assumptions:

Estimated range of cost per megawatt— INR 3.9 lakhs to 4.5 lakhs (March 3 1, 2020 - INR 3.5 lakhs to 5.5 lakhs)
Discount rate— 6.9% p.a. (March 31.2020:6.9% p.a.)

(v) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reoorted fair value of financial instruments.

(vi) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
As per the legal opinion obtained by the Group, it is regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003 accordingly as per the provision to section 129 of
Companies Act, 2013, deprecation has to be charged as per the rates notified by the CERC Regulation.
Depreciation on other fixed assets of the Group is calcukated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated
by the management. The management has re-estimated usefui lives and residual values of all its property, plant and equipment. The
management based upon the nature of asset, the operating condition of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, past history of replacement
and anticipated technological changes, believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule Il of the

(vii) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assess, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimate the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

Shame.

(viii) Revenue estimate
Where power purchase agreements (PPAs) include scheduled price changes, revenue is recognized at lower of the amount billed or by applying
the average rate to the energy output estimated over the term of the PPA. The determination of the lesser amount is undertaken annually based
on the cumulative amount that would have been recognized had each method been consistently applied from the beginning of the contract term.
The Company estimates the total kilowatt hour units expected to be generated over the entire term of the PPA. The contractual rates are applied
to this annual estimate to determine the total estimated revenue over the term of the PPA. The Company then uses the total estimated revenue
and the total estimated kilo-watt hours to compute the average rate used to record revenue on the actual energy output supplied. The Company
compares the actual energy supplied to the estimate of the energy expected to be generated over the remaining term of the PPA on a periodic
basis, but at least annually. Based on this evaluation, the Company reassesses the energy output estimated over the remaining term of the PPA
and adi Jherevenue recognized and deferred to date. The difference between actual billing and revenue recognized is recorded as deferred
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48. of assets and assets sale
TIE has an invaimmt in relatim to RooR. Subsidiarie agg.ting to INR 7.565 lakhs during fiselyar March 31.2021 , as below:

mring firal yar March 31.2021, Antre Powa (Holdirw Cmvany) has idmtifid catain subsidiarie to sdlOff a goirw basis. Which curtattly part of (lir businos. Subsqumt to March 2021 , the Holding Cmrvar».•mteed into a cmtract with Radiance Rm5v•able Pvt. Ltd. ("Radiatr&) to sell e«tain subsidiarie Subsidiarie")with an of 153 MW, f•« INR 5,350 millim. subject to catain purchase price adjustrnmts (the "Rmftop SalePursuant to the Rooft. Sale Agreanmt. Radiance will acquire 100% of the quity Of theSubsidiarie by the subsidiarie, Azure India Pvt. Ltd. aryl Azure Powa Roonq» Pvt. Ltd, as fullybdow.

sale of Roofq' Subsidiarie having 8.4 MWs cpnting capacity is ap«ted to bc consunvnatai within the nat 12 mont}B andacc«dingly the ages and liabilitiß of subsidiarie are shown as "Assets classifi«i as held for sale" in the cotsolidatedbalance shed at March 31.202 t. TIE has an invairmmt of INR 1,988 lahs in the Consolidat«l Statanmtin this r.«t, below.

as pa tams of the Sale Ageanmt in r.«t of the 43.2 MWs capacity which are through catainsubsidiarie Of Holding as attitiß of the Rotrict«i Group (which had issued Satior Bonds duringpro•imrs yu•s) 48.6% of the quity ownaship will be transfa•red to Radiance on the date. and pursuant to the tams of thoeGr«l the ranaining S I .4% can only be refinancing of Gr«l Bm&. As the refinancing of the Gren Bon&are not anticipated to occur within 12 rnmtis from the r.orting date, the asses and liabiliti< of thoe subsidiariß are notas "Assets as beld sale" and irstad cmtinue to be classifi«i within the relatd assds and liabilitis in the balance sh«tas at March 31, 2021. Also thae are rotrictions on transfa of quity ounaship relating to 16 MW proj«t with Delhi Jal Board(DJB), 49% of the equity ownaship will be to Radiance on date, and thc ranaining 51% will betrarsfard or ana March 31 , 2024. Accordingly, the and liabilitiß ofthe DJB 16 MW prcj«t are not promted asclassifiai as sale" and will cmtinue to be classifid within the related assas and liabilitiß in the balance as atMarch 2021

In evan the sale of trr Subsidiarie dos not occur, the Holding 
ases not almg with an 10.5% pa annum equity retum.

must rein±urse Radiance the equity value of

Grmrp has idmtifid a subsidiary for sale, oa a going concQ basis at consid«ation of INR 1.611 Lakhs.Subsqumt to yar aid, has into a sale agr«natt with buya and pursuant thae to. 100% of the ownaship of thissubsidiary was to the buya on rceipt of Øtsidaation. The Company has ræognizd an impairmmt of INR 820lahs in the Consolidatd Statenmt of Opaatiors in this r.ect.

TIE C«rvany has that the to sell the Subsidiarie and the subsequ<lt ex«ution of theSale Agr«nmt are indicators of impairmnt and thaefore tbc has und%lakzu an ass—smelt for the RooncvSubsidiaris. Managannt usd the Sale price in •the Sale Agreane-ns its stimate of the rcovaable vale of the
Subsidiarie The assas liabilitis of the as for sale, togetha with the calculationof tir relatai irnpairmmt is shown below.
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Atut• Power tndi• Privøie tJmIted
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670
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March 31.2021
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49. events aner the reporting period
ha considQd intemal and ata•nal in the of financial statemmts irrlu&g the economic out!00k Md believes mathas "km into account bc possibk curtmtly events arising out Of COVID•19 pandemic. In continuation b notification Ote

Ministry of New Renewable ("MNRE") with a direction to ell stale DISCOMs to reiterate ant an renewable mergy facilities in Jodia havebeen "muq rune status and this status of "tnust remains unchanged. The power plants have ternaincd opntional as dectricity gneration is
an essanial service India. Baed the cutrmt collection exp«lmce, Group has not sem a material iavact on accounts reeivablz

collections due to COVD-19. However, the impact assessmmt of COVID•19 is a continuing proc$s given the uncertaintie associated with its Nture
ne Group will continue to monitm any material changes to future economic conditions.

S&qumt the yet md the Grog) Ins into a bindhg agreanent to sell off certain assets. See also note 48.

Furthe, subsequmt to the year md, the Supreme Cotrt of ma Whiic disposing pditim Ned tmdet m)blic interet litipthn (PIL) aimcd the
emservatim of two species birds. the Glut Indian Bustard and thc Lesser Flotican, which are protected speies in the state Rajasthm md Gujarat
vide its dated ABil 19.2021 instructed the state to install divettcrs. as well as the conversion ofoverhmd powa lins to underground line, suWect
b evaluation such conva•sion by a committee se up by the Suprcrne Court in this regad. Furthq Ute conversion of overt*0d cab(a into

powe Iino, frasible by such cotntnittee. is take placc within a paiod ot one yar. Tbc mmtimed the pass
through of portion such expmss incurred by the Group the ultimate suWcct to aproval of the Cornpetent Regulatory Allhority.
Managenent has preliminarily assessed that any co<s incurred to comply with the said order arc likely bc substantially wholly recoverab}e by the
Group undr provisions of change kw and/or force majeurc of their respectivc PPAs. Givm the preliminary nature of the order and thc onwing

the committee, the Restricted Group has not any amount this matter at March 31.2021

The Gmup has several anonyrmus whistleblower reports, which made various chirrs against Group's certain Key Managerial Pasonoei
Ttr Group thmu$ its Audit Committe, and with the assistance of extemal counsel and forensic auditors, has undatakm an investigation to deatninc
wt*be the allegations contained in the whistleblower reports are substantive. Thc inv<tigation did not substantiate the allegatims comained in the
w4iisUebiowa Nevathelss, thc Group has detainined that a review of certain of its is required to mnre continued compliance with its
intemal policie and Dt•occdUte.

SO. Reclassification
For the ofthse financial statemmts. figures of previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherenecasary.
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